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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF STERLING AND WILSON PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualificd Opinion

We have audited the accompanying conselidated Ind AS financial statements of STERLING AND WILSON
PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafler referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries and partnership
firms (Holding Company, its subsidiaries and partnership firms together referred to as “the “Group™), its
associate and its joint ventures, which comprise the Consclidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow and the Consolidated $tatement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
{hercinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statemcents™}.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of the branch auditors and other auditors on separate/consolidated financial statements
of such branches, subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures referred to in the “Other Matters” paragraph below,
cxcept for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph below, the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indtan Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles gencrally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associate and its joint ventures as at March 31, 2021, of its
consolidated loss and consolidated other comprehensive loss, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes
in gquity for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

i.  We draw attention to the qualification to the audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
Sterling and Wilson International FZE, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company, issucd by the
Independent auditors viglc their report dated November 25, 2021, which is as under:

@) The consolidated financial statements of the overseas wiolly owned subsidiary includes trade accounts
reccivabies balance of AED 371,254,428 (equivalent to Rs. 740.84 crores), as on March 31, 2021, which is
overdue in respect of supply of goods for power projects in India. The Group did not carry out an
impairment assessment of the aforesaid trade accounts receivable that are subject to the expected credit loss
model in accordance with the relevant applicable accounting standards. In the absence of such impairment
assessment, we are unable to determine the carrying value of thege trade accounts receivables as at the
reporting date and the corresponding effect on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
amount of expected credit losses that should have been recognised for the year ended March 31, 2021,

b) The Group's due from related party balance as at March 31, 2021 include an amount of AED 15,152,463
(equivalent to Rs. 30.24 crores), which does not agree with the confirmation received from the related
party, Consequently, due from related party balance is overstated by up to AED §,174,793 (equivalent to
Rs. 16.31 crores) in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, Had
the Group recorded the amount due from related party correctly, its consolidated loss for the year would
have been higher by Rs. 16.31 crores and its consolidated total comprehensive loss would have been higher
by Rs. 1631 croves.

¢) The Group's other reccivables as at March 31, 2021 include an amount of AED 12,136,624 (equivalent 1o
Rs. 24.22 crores) which represents performance guarantee encashed by a customer on tcrmination of the
) contract. We were not able to satisfy ourselves that the Group will be able to recover this amount from the
‘}\customcr. Consequently, we were unable to detcrmine whether any adjustments to this amount were
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ii.  We also draw attention to the qualification to the audit opinion on the financial statements of Sterling and
Wilson Middle East W.L.L a subsidiary of the Holding Company, issued by the independent auditors vide
its report dated July 29, 2021, which is as under;

Related party balances included in trade receivable amounting to QAR 18,440,743 (cquivalent to Rs. 37.13
crores) has not been confirmed as at the end of the reporting period. Moreover, the Group has not produced
any evidence for conducting assessment of expected credit loss on the trade receivables in accordance with
the relevant applicable accounting standards. There were no practicable alternative auditing procedures that
could be used to confirm the recoverability of this amount.

iil,  We also draw attention to the qualification to the audit opinion on the consolidated financial statoments of
Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Solutions Private Limited a wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding
Company, issued by us vide report dated November 26, 2021, which is as under:

As an March 31, 2021, the Group’s total exposure towards Sterling and Wilson Powersolution LLC, an
associate of the Group, aggregates Rs. 11.32 crores, which comprises of Ioans given including interest, The
auditors of Sterling and Wilson Powersolution LLC, have interalia, without modifying their sudit opinion,
have swated that there is material uncerrainty related 10 going concern, since the aforesaid associate has
incurred a net joss during the year ended March 31, 2021 and the networth 1s completely eroded, These
conditions or evenfs indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significan! doubt on the
associate’s ability o continue as a going concern. The Group did not carry out an impairment assessment
in accordance with applicable accounting standards for the aforesaid exposures that are subject to expected
credit loss model and impairment review. In the absence of such impairment assessment, we are unable to
determine the carrying value of such loans given including interest as at the seporting date and the
corresponding effect on the total comprehensive loss for the year ended March 31, 2021,

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10} of the Act. Our responsibilitics under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Siatemenis
section of our report. We are independent of the Group, its associate and its joint ventures in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*the MCAI") fogether with the
ethical requirements that are relevant (o our audit of the conselidated Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Companics Act 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
cvidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terins of their reports and
unaudited financial information provided by Management of lelding Company referred to in the sub-
paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) respectively of the “Other Matters” paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified epinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention 1o note 61 of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements regarding recoverability of trade
receivables, unbilled receivables and advance for projects aggregating to Rs. 848,95 crores as at March 31,
2021 which includes contractual dues in the books of the Holding Company aggregating to Rs. 105.20 crores
from Sky Power Group {Developers) in respect of two states namely Telangana and Madhya Pradesh which
were under disputes with the Developers (seven Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) owned by Sky Power Group).
Out of the seven projects, pursuant to negotiations/discussion, disputes for four projects have been resolved
and scttled prior to March 2021, For two projects the Delhi High Court had directed Sky Power Group
(Developers) to furnish Bank Guarantees equivalent to 50% of the total receivables fowards the aforesaid two
projects. The Developers have sought extensions which Dethi High Court has granted. With regard to one
project, the dispute is between Sky Power Group and Madhya Pradesh Power Management Company Limited
which is subjudice and currently pending before Supreme Court for disposal.

Based on discussions with the Developers, Company's Legal Counsel & favourable order passed by Delhi High
Court, the Management believes that Holding Company’s outstanding amount is good and recoverable and that
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Our opinion and our Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements are not modified in respect of the
above matter.

Information Other than ihe Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors arc responsible for the other information. The
other information comprise the information inchuded in the Director’s report, but does not include the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information as specified
above is expected to be made available to us after the date of this report.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
cxpress any form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In conneetion with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information as identificd above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
mformation is materially inconsistent with the consolidated Ind AS financial statemenis or our knowledge
obtained iy the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information as speeified above, if we conclude ihat there 18 a material misstaiement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s and Board of Directors’/ Partners Responsibilities for the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors arc responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consclidated Ind AS financial statements it terms of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the congolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance (including other
comprehensive income}, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group including its
associate and its joint ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies/Partners of Partnership Firms included in
the Group, its associate and its joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the asscis of each company/parmership firm and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimaies that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implemnentation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating cffectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstaternent, whether due o
fraud or ecrror, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements by the Management and Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

tn preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies/Partners of Partnership Firms included in the Group, of its associate and its joint venlures are
responsible for assessing the ability of cach company/partnership firm fo continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting
unless the respective Board of Directors/Partners either intends to liquidate the Company/ Partnership Firm or to
ccase operations, or has no realistic alterative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies/Partners of Partnership Firms included in the Group, of its
associate and its joint venlures are alse responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of cach
company/partnership firm.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audif of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Cur objectives are {o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as
Frsetr 1% diwhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that

i ‘Tieludes our opinion. Keasonable assurance is a high level of assurance buf is not a guarantee that an audit

{iiMUMBAp@fH&lucled in accordance with SAs, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can

N j@: fronnt fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
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be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

& Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

»  Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements and the operating cffectiveness of such controls based on
our audit,

o Evaluaie the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rcasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of Directors,

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s and Board of Directors. use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 8 material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group, its associate
and s joint ventures to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 1o the related disclosures in the consolidatied
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our epinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group, its associate and its joint ventures to cease to
continue as a going concern,

¢ FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, inchuding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and cvents in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Group, its
associate and its joint ventures {0 express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financia
information of the consclidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.
For the other subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures included in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other
auditors referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b) of the “Other Matters” paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

' Stequirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali relationships and other malters that

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

iy
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Other Matters

a) We did not audit the financial statements of thirteen subsidiaries inciuded in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, whose financial statements reflect the total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of
Rs. 1,886.84 crorcs as at March 31, 2021, total revenues {before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 328.97
crores and net cash outflows (before consolidation adjustiments) amounting to Rs. 27.42 crores for the year
ended on that date. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include the Group’s share of loss of
Rs. 15.50 crores in respect of an associate whose financials have not been audited by us. The consolidated
Ind AS financial statements also include the group’s share of net loss of Rs. 1 crore for the year ended March
31, 2021 in respect of three joint ventures whosc financial statements have not been audited by us. These
financial statements have been audited by other audifors and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, in so far as it relates 1o the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the aforesaid
subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures and our report in terms of subsections (3} of section 143 of the Act,
insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures is based solely on the audit
reports of the other auditors.

Out of these thirteen subsidiaries, twelve subsidiaries, one associate and three joint ventures are located
putside India, whose tinancial statemenis and other financial information have been prepared i accordance
with accounting principics generally accepted in their respective coundries and which have been audited by
auditors under generally aceepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding
Company’s Management has converted the financial stalements of such subsidiaries, associate and its joint
ventures located outside India Trom accounting principics generally accepted in their respective countries to
accounting principies gencrally accepted in India.

We have audited these conversion adjusiments referred to in para (a) above, made by the Holding
Company’s Management. Our opinion in so far as it refated to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries,
assaciate and joint ventwres located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion
adjustments prepared by the Management of the Holding Company and audited by us.

b) We did not audit the financial information of 5 branches included in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of the Group whose financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 270.49 crores as at March 31,
2021 and the total revenue of Rs, 161,15 crores for the year ended on the date, These branches have been
audited by the branch auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures inciuded in respect of branches, is based solely on the report of such branch
auditors,

These branches are located outside India whose financial and other information have been prepared in
accordance accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries which have been audited
by branch auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries, The
Holding Company’s Management has converted the financial information of such branches located outside
India from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective couatries fo accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

We have audited these conversion adjustments referred (o in para (b) above, made by the Holding
Company’s Management. Cur opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such braaches
located outside India is solely based on the report of branch auditors and the conversion adjustments
prepared by the Management of the Holding Company and audited by us.

¢) The financial statements of a subsidiary whose financial statements reflect the total assets (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 0,42 crores as at March 31, 2021, total revenues (before consolidation
adjustinents) of Rs. Nil and net cash outflows (before consolidation adjusiments) amounting to Rs, Nil for
the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements have not been
audited by us or by other auditors. These unaudited fingneial information have been furnished to us by the
Management of the Holding Company and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in
respect of the subsidiary is solely based on such unaudited financial information, In our opinion and
- according to the information and explanations given 1o us by the Management of the Holding Comnpany, this
-f"’;ﬁaﬁ\%ancial information is not materiaj to the Group.

2
NG
Ottfopinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements above, and our report on Other Legal and

tlatory Requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance
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on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As reguired by scotion 143 (3) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of other
auditors on the separate/consolidated financial statements and the other financial information of the
subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph, we repont, to the extent
appiicable, that:

(a)

{b)

{c}

)

(g)

(h)

(@)

Except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have sought and obtained
al) the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualificd Opinion section and except for the pending
update of detailed records of inventories of stock in trade aggregating Rs, 33.22 crores as on March 31,
2021, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examimation of
those hooks and the reports of the other auditors,

The reports on the accounts of the branch office of the Group audited under Section 143(8) of the Act by
branch auditors have been sent to us and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing this report.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,

In our opinion, except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards as specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder,

the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Group.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and reports of the
subsidiaries incorporated in India none of them is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Group cntitics Incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
India, being private limited companies, section 197 of the Act relating to managerial remuneration is not
applicable.

With respeet te the other matiers 1o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of
the auditors on the separate/consolidated financial statements, as also the other financial information of
the subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures as noted in the “Other Matters™ paragraph:

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group, its associate and its joint ventures — Refer note 43 of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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i.  The Group, its associate and its joint ventures have made provisions, as required under applicable
law or Indian Accounting Standards, for material foresceable losses, if any, on long term
contracts — refes note 30 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The Group, its associate
and its joints ventures did not have any material foreseeable losses on derivative contracts,

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaties incorporated in India.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants
im Registration No: 104607W / W100166

%cd K. Udwadia
arfner

Meinbership No: 1246358

UDIN: 24 19-4-6<¢ AR L2 S8<L
Mumbai, November 27, 2021
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Annexure ‘A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”™).

Referred to in paragraph (h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of cven date)

Jn conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Sterling and Wilson Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we
have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the
Holding Company and such companics incorporated in India under the Act, which are its subsidiary companies
{the Holding Company and its subsidiary companics incorporated in India together referred to as the “Group™),
as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Cantrols

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are companics
incorporated in India, arc responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial conirols with reference
10 consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on the criteria established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institwie of Chartered Accountants of India (the
“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the
Company’s business, including adherence fo the respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of the
Company’s assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and crrors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditer’s Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind
AS financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in
India, as aforesaid based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued
by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perfonmn the andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
refercnce to consolidated Ind AS financial statements were cstablished and maintained and if such controls
operated cffectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedurcs to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements inctuded
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effcctiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditer’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS
financial sfatements, whether due (o fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries, incorporated in India as aforesaid.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial conirols with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements includes those
policics and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the company; (2) provide rcasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorisation of Management and Directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial stalements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference fo Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statemments.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper Management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements to future perieds are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, we are of the
opinion that the Group’s overall documentation on intercompany transactions, process of obtaining
confirmations and the Financial Closing Reporting Process needs substantial improvement.

We have considered the deficiencies identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing and extent
of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2021 consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group
and these deficiencies does not affect our opinion on the consclidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group.

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, other than the deficiencics identified and reported above,
an adequate internal financial controls with reference to consclidated Ind AS financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control with reference 1o consolidated Ind AS financial statements
criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal contrel stated in the Guidance
Note.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registeation No: 104607W / W 100166

.......

mshed K. Udwadia /‘ff‘
Partner &

Membership No: 124658
UDIN: 9 {\0.445% ARARLZ S22 1
Mumbai, November 27, 2021
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{1¥) Bank halences otlcr then cash and cash cquivalents
{v) Loans

{vid Cther finoneis] assols
Ecome ke assels ()

CHhor current assels

Tial carrent assels

Todal assels

Equity and Habilitics

Eguity

(4
{tn

(<}

Yguity share capisd
Compulsorly convertible nor-cwnutative prederence shares

Onthar equity

- Capital redompiion reserve

- Securilics prentitim aceiunt

- General reserve

- Lepal reserve

- Retnined camimngs

= Others (cluding items ol atier comprehensive icome)
= Advance against equity £ Loan lowards Eguity

Total equity atiributable 10 owners of the Company

Non-controbling inteeest

Total equity

Nowe

fi

1
15
16
17
&
1y
20
2

22
22

3 Mareh 2021

3 March 2020

185.74 F25.29
6.32 PR
574 21.38

11.33 11.33
286 643
15485 14 30
7037 TAA5
1E4.28 P76.43
.69 1.0
78.88 §25.47
378 12895
6,30 6.34
£33,71 778,88
78.92 &5
.68 0.7
2.4634.46 339833
85.70 4360
4803 63.86
E23.37 F34.97
933.62 F,240 46
1493 1424
497.85 63278
450756 50085 39
5041.27 647747
2,37 2837
1402.56 1,502, 56
FA31RY 1,531.87
{1,283.6%) {29457}
50,00 30,60
Sl 44 361 .46
13.3% P339
1.11 1.1
(187685} (846.08]

€35.16) (74.43)
2.37 .00

598.19 1.237.30
008 4035

548,27 1.241.35%




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Consolidated Balance sheet (Continued}
as at 37 Muoref 2021

{Cuervency © Indian rupees i ¢roms)

Liahilivies

1 Non-currend liabilities
{8 Financial liabihues
(1) Borrowings
{iiy Tease tiabidises
(B} Provisions
[y Ixelorred tax lialalities (net)

Tatal nor-carsent linldlilics

2 Current iinbiliies

(a) Faancial Habibities
{1 Borrowings
(i) Lease labildes
(&t} Trade pavables
- Fotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterwises and small enterprises
(ivy Other financiad finhitities

(b3 Other current iratalities

(o} Provisions

() Discome wax liabidities {neld

Tokal curvenl liabililies
Ttat liabiities

Towl equity and Hahilities

Sigrificant accounting policics

Motes Lo the consolidued financial slalements

The attached notes &1¢ an integral pan of these consotidated fnancial statements,
As per owr report of oven dale

For Kabyaniwalla & Mistry LEP

Chartered Accowuans
Srin's Registration No: [104607WAW D066

MUMBAT |

/ FHrector

1IN:0021 6905
Mumiui

Membership Ne: 124658
Mumbzi
27 Movember 2021

V3

Muimbxai

27 November 2021

Nore 31 March 201 31 March 2020
24 14,497 44,08
44 347 7.20
23 043 40.77
fik i3 il

48,20 92 83
ki) £,724.91 223604
4.4 43 i5.24
27
16547 11439
1510058 1.498 87
28 257.74 687
) TRIT? 93267
34 84,75 0375
il 7.28 344
4,444 .80 5,143.27
4,493,010 5,230.12
5041.27 0.477.47
3
104

28

»q{i; IKharsteed Daravaka

!’ammegde /

Chief Financiad Officer
Membership No; 203490

For and on behaif of the Boasd of Directors of
Sterding and Wilson Private Limited
CINAI3 20UMELI9TIPLCO] 7538

Faviue Darovial
Managing Director
DIpEO0190585
Mumbai

- P TEariharan
Conyruy Secronny
Membership No: A 3163

Mumbui



Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Consolidated statement of profit and loss
for the Year ended 31 March 2021

{Comrency : indizm rupees in crores)

Continning operatioes
Revenue fon opermiins
Ohler micome

Tota! income
Expenses

Cost of canstruction malerials, stores amd dpare parts
Puseclise of aded poads

CRANLEES 171 IMVeniares o1 s1eck-in-1eads

IMreet grajoet cosls

Fangdaves henelids evpense

Finance costs

Drejreciaiion imd Wnseisa i o

Ouier expenses

Tatal expenses

Consalidaied (Tess) before share i (loss) of jaint ventares and associades and income L fesa continging operations

Share it (losst of jormt ventinres and associates (el of inconig Las)

Cansolidated (Loss] before income (ax for the year from cootinging aperations
Tax expense:

Lurrent tax

Pron shons For caelier yem s

Deterred tax charge / feredit}

Cuonsalidated (loss) for the year

Other camprelensive income / {loss)

Ttems that will nat be eeelassified subsequentdy 10 profit or loss
(i} Remeasuremems of defined benefit finbimy

(113 Share of other comprehensive ineanme in joint venture, to the exlent nat ( be reclassified 1o profit o loss
(iii} Incone tax relatimg s itents that wit nov be reelassified to profit or loss

Teems that witl be reclussificd to profit o boss
(i) Exchange difforences in translathig nancial statements of foreign opeeations
(i Liffective portion of {lusses) on hedging instramends in cash Now hedpes
it} Share of ather comprelensive Meome in joiut senture, (o the extent ) be reclassilicd 5o prolit or Joss
vy Ingome tax relating (o items that will be reclassified (o profit or loss

Other comprehensive incomie f (Joss) for the year, ned of incame (ax

Total comprehensive (loss) for the yenr

Consolidated {foss) ateributahle to:

Cheners of 1he Company

Mon-conlrolling intorests

Consobidaded (Foss) for the year

Other comprchensive income attributablbe ta:
Owners of the Compuny
Mon-vonrol g interests

Other coniprehensive income for the vear

‘Folal comprehensive foss) atirbotabie 10
Oumers of the Campany
Naos-controlling interesis

Total comprehensive {foss) for the year

i
BAT )

Neder Year ended
31 Mureh 2627

¥oear ended
31 March 2020

i2 266718 185323
k&) 7243 24071
2,739.01 4,093,094

34 166597 231433
23 23 17 93
i {6y RERT
kX [WIER A1 133651
s 248,24 36 T8
gy 262.28 3526
EL] HLYA EERE!
ey 476,28 30775
3,706.32 4 66818

(%66.71) {87424y

(16.81) {17 65)

(983,12) {611.84)

S

B850 135

(1.02) .02

49,20 (73.56)

110 (72,59

{1,034,32) {554,300

.52 i.3%

(0. £} 0,06

(In83} (444}

3842 4431}

(R E] 1.34

38.00 4241

{99547} (5E1.31)

(1,630,673 {33099}

(3.65) (231}

(1,034,323 {539, 30)

3%.21 (41.25)

{G.32) 106.78)

38.50 (4200

{991.46} (578.21y

(397} (3.1

(995.42) {3813ty




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Consolidated statemoent of profit and foss (Continned)
Jor the Year ended 31 Mureh 2021

(Cuwerency - Indun rupecs m oinres)
Noie Year ended Yo enibed
31 March 20021 31 March 2020

Earnings per cquity share for continuing aperations stiviltable to cquity boklers of the parent
frominal vadue of s, 10 each)

Basiv and diluied cumings per share (Rs) Bl (107.87) {13290

Earaings per eguity share far continuing eperations altributable to equity holders af the pareni
¢reosngma] vidiee of 15 10 cach}

Basic and difwied canvings per shure (8 44 {[07.87) [F52.490)

Significnm accounting pobicies
Ftes o the cansofrdaied Hinaeal singoments
The atlached noies are iy ntegval par of these cosalidited finanen) stiemens, 74

As per our reporl of even date.
For and on beldf of the Board of Diveetars of
Sterding and Wilsen Private Limited
CENGURE20MMIT 97RO 7538

= \
2 O eRrasacoih

For Kalvaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chavtered Acoonnfains

II - ] \
. f o A
fnshed . Udwadia e ML el Whurshd Daruvat Zarine Daruvala
il :
rimer i'\“-f«{» MEBAT ];';f; l} Phpeciar Kunaging Pircctor
/ 12N 00216805 BINO0190585

Membership No: 124658 \};} . {;f\
Winmbai sl 5 i 3‘ Y, Aupibiai Mumbai
27 November 2021 Sl
- 4 . e
e T T
’ 4 s Z’,, T

fw/ , T

Param@hwar Hogde - - . K. 1M Hariaesn
e Fareareicd Cficer Clustigan y Seorebiney
hemibership Mo: 203490 Membership Mo A 5163
Mumbut Muesztbai

27 Movember 2021



Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Consalidaled Statemenl of eash Dows

Jour the Year ended 30 March 2021

{Currency © Indian rupees in erores)

AL

B

CASILFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
{l.oss) belore tax

Adfiesteents for

epreciation and amortisation expose

Praperty, it and cquipment swritten off

Finumce cost

Share in ks of joint verdures and asspezale

Giprdm oo satle of subsidiony {net)

Supplier bakinees writlen back

Fimeneet assets measared st e valoe throngh prodis & loss 2/ - net change in fie value

Elssesilised foreigy exchange boss (heth

Prepvision fur bad and doabiial debts, vans and advanges {nety
B3ad debts wilen of

Provision B Toreseesbhle losses (rwld

Provision for Liquidated damages (net)

Ciain o absorption of logscs i joint ventures (refer nowe 3 (o cash flow below and note 30)

Write back ol provision for bad and doubtiu) debls {net)

Write back of provision no longer required

Interost income from bank deposits, related partios, third marties
Dividend income

Gain on disposal of Investment {net)

Gaan i needification

Alfowance {or expected eredit 1oss on Joan given to robated party
Interest accrued on receivabies written oft’

Writedown of coniruct assets

(Profin) / Lass on sale of Property, Plant & Lguipments (wet)
Operating profit f {loss) Before working capital changes
Working capitel adfustntents

Decredse ¢ {Increase) in Inventories

{Increse) / Theerease in Trade receivables

{Inereise) £ Decrease in loans and olher ausets

(Decreased / Increase in wrade payable, other current liabifines and provisions

Net change in working capital
Cash flows penerated front f {used in) aperaling activitics
Income tax refund ¢ {pand) (net)

Effects of exchange difterences on translation of assets and habiifics
Net cash flows generated from f (used in) operating aclivities (A}

CASH FLOW FROM ENVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Purehase ol Property, plad and equipment Gneluding capilal work in progress, capital

creditors and capital advances)

Proceeds from sule of Propeny, plant and equipment and mtanible assets

Inferest incemne from bank deposits, relaled partics, third partics
[rvestment in equity instraments

(Furchase) of Tixed deposits, net

Proceeds from liquidation of Subsidiary

Loan {given o) / repaid by relaled parties and third parties {net}
Prerdend income

Net eash flows genervated from / (used in} investing sclivities (13)

3 Muarek 2061

31 Marels 2020

(483.22) (ol N
4085 4484
- (.86
262,28 32525
16.51 3765
- 221
[Eh45) {1323
218 .09
- £3.00)
155,32 3304
14907 2TA45
{5.50) 755
7.06 273
- (31.25)
[1.26) 758
f1.52} {192
{27.94} (16.65)
. 00
(1.64) -
(#.34) .
- ({319}
133.22 -
18,43 .
{0.78) .
(383.78) {192 540
(E0.82) F6.75
390,76 {18717}y
27099 (276.353)
(156.15) (12753
094,78 11,174.45)
JLeg {1,366.95)
93.14 {58 403
38.34 {30.9%)
442,48 (147640
{1890 (4567}
569 {732
21794 1331
2.58 {Loh
14,75 {1.06)
- 07
3.96 {83.4%)
- .01
406,02 (11891

¥



Sterling and Wilson Private Linited
Consolidated Siatement of eash Nows {coutinaeif)

for the Year ended 31 March 2021

{Currency - Tndian rapecs i Crores}

CASLE FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

31 March 2021

21 Barch 2020

Feuity Capital fssued - i65.01
Proceeds fram issue of compulsoniy vanverithie preference shares 300,00 125250
Advance reccived against cquity 237 383
fiviores expense paid {257.70) (317.64)
Secured term loans oblained from bank - 3915
Repayment of seeured tenn ioans to hank {65.03) {43.97)
(Repvment of 1/ Proceeds rom Cash oredit Joan from banks (net} HL84 142.52)
Repavyinenl of Ml discountmg (1.94) £ By
Procveds fram [ (Repayvment of Y working captal loan from banks (net) (3,99} IR
Paymaent af Loase Babiliies {including Inerest expensel {1727 (210
Mon convertible Delieniteres (repaid] £ proceeds {1604 Tal3.06
Proceeds of amb overdrafl 160 10y
Unsecored Loans (Repaid) / proceeds {348.34) 181.57
Nef cash flows {used in) / generaied from fimancing activities (C) (548.40) 131420
Net (deercase)/inerease in cash and cash equivalents {A 4 B+ ) (59,90} (81,101
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 145,68 23288
Effect of mnoveniont in exchange rates on cash held - 6.15
Cash and cash equivalents held on sale of subsidiary - 112.33)
Cash and cash equivaients @t the end of the year 85,70 145.60

Notes 10 Consolidaled Statement of cash flows

bt

L)

The Stateiment of Cash flows has been prepared under U indirect methiod as set oul in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 {'Ind AS 7') an Statement of Cash

Flhonws.

Cash and cash equivalents conrises

Balances with Bank

- I CUITERT ZCCOUNES 83.06 144.77
Chegues, dralls on hand 0.4 0.0
Cash on hand (.50 53

83,70 145,60

Man cash consideration

Parsuant to share purchuse agreement between the Group and shareholders of joint venture entities, the Group is entitled to receive additional shares /f
cush from erstwhile sharcholder for the shoriladl i case actual et worlh as of 31 Pecember 2047 is Jower than the target net worlli agreement. As o
resull, @ seliloment agreement was entered inla an 7 February 2020 belween the Group and the erstwhile majarity sharcholders. whereby the Groop
recewed shares in joind venlure without cash consideration. Refer note 51




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Consolidated Staiement of cash flows feancinied}

Jo the Year ended 31 March 2021

{Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

Notes 1o Consolidated Statement of cash flows {eontinned)
4 Changes in liabilities anising (Tom (nancing activiiy, including both changes arising from cush Nows and non-cash changes:

31 March 2029 3 March 2020

A, Long terim horrewings

l.ong term borrowings as al beginning of twe year 119,71 U264
Net cash Nows {63.03) 15,18
Fareign clareney transkation .00 1 .59
Lomg torm hostowings as 31 end of Uve year 4468 15971

B, Shorierm boirrowings

Shart term horrownigs as @ bogmnbig of the year 233605 1.816.24

Met cash Mows 1510.78) 416,46
Foreign currency ranslation {t+.36} 3.33

Shorl ferot borrowings as al end of the year 1,724.91 223645

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP For and on behal of the Board of Directors of
Chertered Acconnianis Sterling and Wilson Private Limited
Tirm's Registration No: 104607W/AW T 66 CIN:UIRZO0METO74PLCIH 7338

Com ) '

X L %ﬂ&Xw.

| . Khurslied Darivala Larine Darwvala
Partner Director Munaging Director
Membership No: 124658 DINO0216903 INNO0 190585
Mumbat umbni Mumhai

27 Movember 2021

Parameshwar i'tlcgdu K. P Harihwran
Chiel Financisl Of¥icer Company Secretury
Nembership No: 203450 Membership Mot A 5165
Mumbai Mumbai

27 Moventber 2021
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Sor the year ended 31 March 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

1.

il

Buackpround

Sterfing and Wilson Private Limited ('the Company®, “the Parent Company™) is one of India's leading
Mechanical, Electricals and Plumbing and Fire-fighting services {collectively known as "MEP services')
company with a pan India presence and international operations in Middie East, South East Asia, Aftica,
Europe and Awstralia. These conselidated financial statemenis comprise the Company aod its
subsidiaries (hereinafler coflectively referred to as “the Group™), i13 associaie and the Group's interest in
Jownt ventures,

The Group is specialized i complete turn-key solutions, offering a large spectrum of services like
Electrical Contracling, heat ventilation and air-conditioning systems, Public health and Safety, LV
systems, EPC contracting, Solar EPC and Data Centre solutions. The principal activity of the Group also
includes import, export and trading of building materials, related accessories, insialfation and
mainienance of air conditioning systems, electricily iransmission and control apparatus and
electromechanical equipment. Farther, the Group is also engaged in plumbing, sanitary and electrical
fitting contracting, and designing, engineering, procurement, fabrication, construction, installation of
solar generating facilities and other related activities.

Sterling and Wilson Private Limited is a subsidiary of Shapoorii Pallonji and Company Private Limited,
effective Trom 17 April 2008.

Basis of preparation of the consolidafed Ind AS financial statements

Statement of compliance

The accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards as per the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013, (the 'Act'} and other relevant

provisions of the Act.,

The consolidated Ind AS financial stalements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company at their meeting held on 27 Navember 2021,

Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the

Company’s Tunctional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest two decimal places
in crores, unless otherwise stated.




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees In crores)

{

(i)

Busis of measurement

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for

the following;

- certain financial asseis and liabilities (including derivative instraments} that are measured at fair
value {refer accounting policy regarding financial instrumenis); and

- employee’s defined beoelit plan as per actuarial valuation.

Use of extimuies amd judgineniy

The prepatation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use
of Judgements, estimates and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reporied amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses ihe date of these financial statements and
the reported amounis of revenues and expenses for the years presented. The actual resulis may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision 1o accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a matertal adjustiment
10 the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financia} year are discussed below:

Evaination of percentage of completion

Determination of revenue under percentage of completion method necessarily involves making
estimates, some of which are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of
completion, costs to completion, the expected revenue from the project or activity and foreseeable losses
to completion. Estimates of praject income, as well as project costs, are reviewed periodically, The effect
of changes, if any, 1o estimates is recognized in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the
period in which such ehanges are determined.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group estisnates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on the period over which
the assets are expected (o be available for use. The estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment is based on collective assessment of indusiry practice, internal technical evaluation and on
the historical experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future results from operations
could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned
above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in
these factors and circumstances. The estimated useful lives are reviewed periodically and are updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due {o physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsolescence and iegal or other lhmits on the vse of the assets,




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

i)

{iv}

(v

tlseful lives of 1angible assets are based on the Jife prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Act. In cases, where
the useful lives are different based from the prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Act, they are based on
internal technical evaluation, Assumplions are also made, when the Group assesses, whether an asset
may he capitalized and which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalized. The estimation of
residual value of assets is based on management’s judgement about the condition of such asset at the
point of sale of asset,

Recoveranility of deferred income fax ussers

In determining the recoverability of deferred income tax asseis, the Group primarily considers current
and expected profitability of applicable operating business segments and their abiity to utilize any
recorded tax assets, The Group reviews fis deferred income tax assets al every reporting peried end,
taking into consideration the availability of sufficient current and projected taxable profits, reversals of
taxable temporary differences and tax planning strategies.

Measurement of defined bencfit obligations and other employee benefit obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in refarn for their service in the current and prior periods;
that benefit is discounted to delermine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability ai the present value of
the other long-term employment benefits,

The present value of the obligation is determined based on actuarial vaiuation at the balance sheet date
by an Independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of
service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures. The obligation is
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining
the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the marke! yields on
Gavernment securities as at tie balance sheet date.

Provision for obsolete inventory

The Group reviews il inventory lo assess loss on account of obsolescence on a regular basis, In
determining whether provision for obsolescence should be recorded in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss, the Group makes judgments as te whether there is any observable data indicating that
there is any future salability of the product, including demand forecasts and shelf life of the product.
The provision for obsolescence of inventory is based on the ageing and past movement of the inveniory.
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(vii)

fmpairment losses on financial assets and conrract assets

The Group reviews #s financial assets and contract assets to assess impairment at regular intervals. The
Group's credit risk is primarily attributable 1o its financial assets and contract assets. In determining
whether impainment losses should be reported in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the Group
makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash Jows, Accordingly, an allowance for expectled credit loss is imade where
there is an idemified loss event or condition which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a
reduction in 1he recoverabiity of the cash flows,

[n case of wade receivables, unbilled receivables and contract assets, the Group follows a stmplificd
approach wherein an smount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognition as oss allowance. For
all other financiat assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the £2-month ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured at lifetime of ECL..

ECL. is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to reccive (i.c. all cash shorifalls}, discounted
al the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defaults events over the expected
life of a financial assel. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events
that are possible within 12 months from the reporting daie.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures reguire the measurement of fair values, for
both financial assets and Habilities.

The Group has an established eontrol framework with respect to the measurement of fair vatues, which
includes overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including l.evel 3 fair values by the
management. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments.

11" thivd partly information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair vaiues, then
the management assesses the evidence obwained from the third parties to support the conclusion that
these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the leved in the fair value hicrarchy in which
the vajuations shounld be classified. Significant valuation issues are reporied 1o the Company’s Board of
Directors.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inpuls used in the
valuation techniques as follows,
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Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assets or 1abilities,

Level 2: inputs other than quotled prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assel or liabiligy,
either directly {i.c. as prices) or indirectly (1.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market daia (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fais value of an asset or a hability, the Group uses observable market data as far as
possibie, [i the inputs used 1o measure the fair vajue of an asset or g Hability {ail iIme different jevels of
the far value hierarchy, then the fair valile medsurement is categorized in s entirety in the same Tevel
of the fair value hicrarchy as the lowest level input that is steniftcant to the emtire measurement.

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has ocowrred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
note:-

Note 54 — Financial Instruments,
Estimation of provisions and confingencies

Provisions are lisbilities of uncerfain amount or timing recognized where a legal or constructive
obligation exists at the balance sheet date, as a result of a past event, where the amount of the obligation
can be reliably estimated and where the outflow of economic benefis is probable. Contingent liabilities
are possible obligations that may arise from past event whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occwrrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events which are not fully within the
control of the Group. The Group exercises judgement and estimates in recognizing the provisions and
assessing the exposure (o contingent Habilities relating to pending litigations. Judgement is necessary in
assessing the likelihood of the success of the pending claim and to quantify the possible range of financial
seltlement. Due to this inherent uncertainty in the evaluation process, actual losses may be different from
originally estimated provision.

Business combinations and imtaugible assefs

Business combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. Ind AS 103 requires
the identifiable intangible assets and contingent consideration to be fair valued in order to ascertain the
net fair value of identifiable assef(s, liabilities and contingeat liabilities of the acquiree. Significant
estimales are required to be made in determining the value of contingent consideration and intangible
assels. These valuations are conducied by independent valuation experts.
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(i)

Impairnient of Goadwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the
recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount based on & number of
factors including operating results, business plans, future cash flows and economic conditions. The
recoverable amount of cash generating units is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value
less cost o sell. The goodwill impairment test is performed at the level of the cash generating unit or
groups of cash-generating unils which are benefitting from the synergies of the acquisition and which
represenis the lowest level ar which goodwiil is monitored for imernal management purposes.

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key
assumptions on which management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated
long-term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash {low
projections take into account past experience and represent management’s best estimate about future
developments.

Determination of lease term and Discount rate

The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies 1o be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS {16
Idemtification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Group uses significant judgement in assessing
the lease term {including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate, The Group deiermines
the feasc term as the non-cancellable period of a lease. together with both periods covered by an option
10 extend the Teasc if the Group is reasonably certain (o exercise that option; and periods covered by an
option 1o terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing
whether the Group is reasonably certain fo exercise an option 1o extend a lease, or not 1o exercise an
option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an econamic
incentive for the Group to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to
terminaie the Jease. The Group revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-canceliable period
of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific 1o the lease
being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Estimation of uncertainties veluating to the globui health pundemic from COVID — 19:

The Group has considered the possible effects that may resul{ from the pandemic relating 1o COVID —
19 on the carrying amount of receivables, unbilled revenues, investments, contract assets, goodwill and
intangibie assets. In developing the assumptions relating 1o the possible future uncertainties in the global
economic conditions because of the pandemic, the Group, as at the date of approval of these financial
staiements, has used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related
information, economic forecasts and consensus estimales from market sources on the expected future
performance of the Group. The Group has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and,
based on the current estimates, expects the carryving amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact
of COVID — 19 on the Group’s financial statements may differ from the estimated as at the date of
approval of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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Significamt accounting policles
Principles of consolidation anid equily accounting
Subsidiaries

The conselidated Ind AS financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021, The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has righis {0,
variable returns from ifs involvement with (e eatity and has the ability to affect those returns through
Hs power over the entily.

The Group re-assesses whether or not 1t controls an investee if facts and civcumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Group abtains coatrol over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Assels, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the vear are
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the
date the Group ceases to contrel the subsidiary.

Consolidated Ind AS {inancial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Ifa member of the Group uses accounting policies
other than those adopted in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for like fransaciions and events
in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements
in preparing the consolidated Ind AS {inancial stalements to ensure conformity with the Group's
accounting policies.

The {inancial sfatemenis of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up {0 same
reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e, 31 March 2021. When the end of the reporting period
of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidalion purposes,
additional financial information as of the same date as the standalone financial statements of the parent
to enable the parent fo consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless il is impracticable
to do so.

Sr, Name of the Enfity Retationship for Country of % Holding | % Holding
No. the purpose of | Incorporation as on as on
consolidation 31.3.2024 31.3.2024
1 | Range Consulian{s Subsidiary India 100% 100%
Private Limited
2 | Sterling and Wilson Subsidiary India 100% 100%
Security Systems
Private Limited
3 | Sterling  and  Wilson Subsidiary United Arab 100% 100%
Internationat FZE Emirates
4 | Sierling and Wilson Subsidiary Switzerfand 100% 100%
Cogpgen Solutions AG
5 | Sterling and Wiison Subsidiary Qatar 49%% 45%
Middle East WL
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6 | Sterling and Wilson Subsidiary Nigeria 51% 51%
Nigeria Limited

7 | Sterling and Wilson Subsidiary Nigeria 100% -
Nigeria FZE

8 | GCO Australia Pty, Ltd. Subsidiary Australia 76% 76%

9 | Sterling and Wilson Subsidiary India 100% .
Cogen Solutions Pvt Lid
#

10 | Sterling  and  Wilson Step-Down Australia 100% -
Australia Pty # Subsidiary

11 | Sterling and Wilson Step-Down United Arab 49% 49%
Middle East Subsidiary Emirates
Electromechanical LLC

12 | Sterling and Wilson Step-Down United States 100% 100%
Power Systems Inc. Subsidiary of America

13 | Sterling and Wilson Step-Down United 100%
HES UK  Limited Subsidiary Kingdom -
(formerly Sterling &
Wilson UK Holdings
Limited) *

14 | Sterling and  Wilson Step-Down Bahrain 49% 49%
Middle Last Subsidiary
Electromechanical
{Bahrain) WLL

15 | Sterling and Wilson Step-Down Kuwait 49% 49%
Middle East Sanitation, Subsidiary
Electrical, Cooling and
Conditioning
Contracting L1LC

16 | Sterling and Wilson Step-Down United States 100% 100%
Cogen Solutions LLC Substdiary of America

17 | Enrich-SWPL JV Subsidiary India 49% 49%

I8 | Sterling and Wilson Subsidiary India 100% -
Jindun Consortium

# Acquired during the year
* Sold during the year

The financial statements of subsidiary at scrial number 4 is unaudited and is consolidated based on

management certified financial information.
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Cansolidation procedure;

(i) Combine like ilems of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent
with those of its subsidiary. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based
on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements at the acquisition date,

(it} Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in cach subsidiary and the
parent’s poriion of eguity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains the
accouning of goodwiil generated on consoiidadon,

(Hi) Eliminate in full inagroup assets and flabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating 10 fransactions between entitics of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup
transaciions that are recogrised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment,
are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporaty
differences thatl arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulling from intragroup
transactions.

b Non-controlling interesss (NC1)

NCIT are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net ideniifiable assets at the date of
acquisition. Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated balance sheet respectively,

Profit or loss and cach component of other comprehensive income (OC)) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

' Equity accounted investees

The Group's interests in equity accounted investees comprise interests in associale and joint ventures.
An associate 15 an entity over which the Group has significant influence. A joinl venture is an
arrangement in which the Group has joint control and has rights to the net assets of the arvangement,
rather than rights 10 its assets and obligations for ils labilities.

Interests in agsocialefjoint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equily method,
the investment in associatefjoint venture is inftially recagnised at cost. The carrying amount of the
investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate/joind
venture since the acquisition date and the Group's share of other comprehensive income. Goodwill
relating to the associate/joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not
tested for impaiement individually. When the Group's share of losses in an equity accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the ether entity. Unrealised gains on fransactions
between the Group and its associate/joint ventures are eliminated fo the extent of the Group's interest in
these entities until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.
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d.

Sr. | Name of the Company | Relationship Country of % Holding % Holding
No. Ircorporation as on as on
31.3.2021 31.3.2020
1 { §TC Power S.r.l. loint Venture italy 60% 0%
2 1 Co.5Stell Sl Joint Venture 1taly 85% 85%
3 PTG Saas di Barzanti | Joinf Venture Italy 5% 50%
Massimo
4 | Sterbing  and  Wilson Associate United Arab A9%; -
Power Solutions LL.C Emirates

-

Chlanges in ownership interests

The Group treals transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests, the
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. The share of non-controlling interest is
restricted 1o the extent of contractual obligation of the Group.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of loss of control,

joint control oy significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured 10 its fair value

with the change in carrying amount recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrving amount for the purpose of subsequently accounting Tor the retained
interest in joint venture or financial assel.

Business conthinations
Business combinations {otiter than common control business combinations) an or after I April 204 3:

As part of its transition 10 Ind AS, the Group has elected to apply the relevant Ind AS, viz. Ind AS 103,
Business Combinations, to only those business combinations that occurred after the transition date L.e. |
April 2015, In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Group accounts Tor these business combinations using
the acquisition method when control is fransferred to the Group. The consideration transferred {or the
business combination is generally measured at fair value as at the date the control is acquired (acquisition
date), as are the net identifiable assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested anaually for
impairment. Any gain on a hargain purchase is recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity as capital
reserve if there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination
as resubting in a bargain purchase; otherwise the gain is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve.
Transaction cosis are expensed as incurred, excepl 10 the extent related to the issue of debt or equity
securities,

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related 1o the settlement of pre-existing
relationships with the acquiree. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or Joss.
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Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. 1f an oblipation to pay
conlingent consideration that mects the definition of a {inancial instrument is classified as equity. then
it is not re~measured subsequently and seitlement is accounied for within equity. Other coatingeni
consideration is remeasured at fair value at each reporting date and c¢hanges in the fair value of the
contingent consideration are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

I a business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at its acquisition date fuir value and any resulting pain or loss is recognised in The consolidated
staiement of proitt and loss or G, as appropriae,

Common coutrof transactions

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the group are accounted for using the
pooling of interests method as follows:

(i) The asscts and Jiabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

(ii) Ne adjustments are made 1o reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets and liabilities,
Adjustmenis are only made 1o harmonise accounting palicies.

(iiiy  The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as
if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, itrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the
business combination had accurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only
from that date.

{iv) The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the fransferor is
aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the {inancial stalements of the
transferce.

(V) The identity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become reserves
of the transferee,

(vi) The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capilal issued plus any
additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of
the transferor is transferred 1o reserve.

As per para 9(iii) of Ind AS 103 (Appendix C), The financial information in the financial statements in
respect of prior periods should be restated as if the business combination had ocourred from the
beginning of the preceding period in the financial stalements, irespective of the actual date of the
combination. However, if business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information
shall be restated only from that date.

Accordingly, the comparative consolidated Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
March 2020 have been restated to include the financial information of Sterling and Wilson Cogen
Solutions Private Limited,
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3.3 Current/ non-current clussification
The Schedule BI to the Act requires assets and Habilities to be classified as either current or non-current.

Assefy
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i it s expecied 10 be realised in, or is intended Tor sale or consumption in, the Group's normal
aperaing cyede;
{ii) it is expecied 1o be reaiised within fwelve months from the reporfing dale;

(i it is held primarily for the purposes of being traded; or
(iv) it is cash or cash equivalent unjess it is restricted from being exchanged or used 1o setile a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assels are classified as non~current.

Liahilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following oriteria:

(i) it is expected to be settled in the Group's normal operating cycle;

(i} itis duc 1o be setiled within twelve months from the reporiing date;

(iiiy  itis held primarily for the purposes of being traded; or

(iv) the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for atleast
twelve months from the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Operating Cyrcle

AN assets and labilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's normal
operaling cycle and other eriteria set out above which are in accordance with the Schedule 11§ to the Act,

n respect of the engineeting, procurement and construction services (EPC) segment of the Group, the
construction projects usually have long gestation periods and based on the nature of services and ihe
time between the acquisition of assets {or processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
the Group has ascertained s operating cycle as 36 months for the purpose of current - non-current
classification of assets and liabilities, For the other operations, the operating cycle is ascertained as 12
moaths for the purpose of current — non-current ¢lassification of the assets and liabilities.
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3.4

{0

(i)

35

Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions
Initial Recognition

The functional currency of the Company and its Indian subsidiaries is Indian Rupees whereas the
functional currency of forcign eperations (Subsidiarics, Joit venture and Branches) is the curreney of
primary economic environment in which the enthy operaies. Transactions in foréign currencies are
recapnised at the rates of exchange provailing at the dates of the transactions. Exchange differences
arising on foreign exchanpe transactions scitled during the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss,

Measurement of foreign currency ifems af the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated info the functional
currency at the exchange rate al the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign cutrency are franslated inte the functional currency at the exchange rate when
the fair value was determined. Non-menetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange
differences are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, except exchange differences
arising from the translation of the equity investients classified as fair value through OCI (FVOCT)} which
is recognised in OC),

Foreign operations

For the purpose of presenting these consolidated ind AS financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of foreign operations (subsidiaries, joint ventures, branches} including fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated into INR, the functional currency of the Company, at the exchange raies al the
reporiing date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are transiated into INR at the exchange
rates af the dates of the {ransactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at
the date of the {ransaction,

When a foreign operation is disposed of in i{s entirety or partially such thai control, significant influence
or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount of exchange differences related to that foreign operation
recognised in OCI is reciassified o the consofidated statement profit and loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal. If the Group dispeses of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is re-allocated 10 NC1. When the Group disposes of only
a part of its interest in a joint venture while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Financial instraments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial
Hability or equity instrument of another entify.
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(@)

(b)

Recogaition wind inifial measurenent

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs thai ave
directly attributable 1o the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financiat assets and financial labilities at fair vaiue through profil or loss) are added 10 or deducied from
the fair value of the financial asseis or financial liabililies, as appropriate, on inltial recognition,
Transaction costs directly atfributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilitics at {air
value through profif or loss are recognised imntediately in proht or loss.

Classificafion and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

COn initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amnoriized cost; or

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - debt investment; or

-« Tair Value through Other Comprehiensive Income (FVOCT) — equity investment; or
- Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (IFVTPL),

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except i and in the period the
Group changes its business model for managing financial asset.

A financia) asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

desipnated as at FVTPL:

- 1he asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the coniractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates fo cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOC] if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as af FVYTPL:

- the assef is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the confractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
elect 1o present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity
investment). This election is made on an investment- by-investment basis. The cumulative gain or loss
is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments. These investments in equify are not
held for trading. Instead, they are held for medium or long-term strafegic
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All financial assets not classificd as measured al amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business nwodel ussessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to managemens. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning cosmtractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, maiching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related Habilities or expected cash outflows or reafising cash flows through the sale
of the assels;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reporied to the Group’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business mode! (and the financial asseis held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

-« how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assels managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

~ the freguency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
gales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contraciual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal” is defined as the faiy value of the financial asset on initial
recognition, ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs {e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and inmterest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the thning or amount of contractual cash flows such thai
it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
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{ii)
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- prepayment and extension features; and
-~ terms that timil the Group's claim (o cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract, AddiGonally, for a financial assel acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment al an amount that subsfantially
represents the contractnal par amoust plus acceraed (but unpaid} contractual interest (which may also
include reasonable additional compensation for carly fermination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if'the fair value of the prepayment feature is insigaificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measnrenment and gains und losses
Financial assets at FYTPL:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and fosses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recagnised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss,

Financial assets at amortised cost:

These assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inlerest method. The
amoriised cost is reduced by impairment losses, Inferest income, foreign exchange pains and losses and
impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of profif and loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognilion is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss,

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of 2 debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorfer period, 1o the net carrying amount on initial
recognilion.

Debt investntents af FVOUCT:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in (CI. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumuiated in OCI are reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Eguity investments at FYOCL

These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss unless the dividend ciearly represents a recovery of part of the
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cost of the investment, Other net gains and losses are recogaised in OCI and are not reclassified 1o the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Financial Gabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial Habilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

foguity instramenty

An equily instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the asscrs of an entity afier
deducting all of its lisbilites. Equity instruments issued by the Group is recognised at the proceeds
received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial Habilities: Clussificafion, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured af amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as beld-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured atl amortised cost using the effective interest methad.
Inlevest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit and Joss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss.

Derecognition
Financial assers

The Group derecopnises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assel expire, or il transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantiafly all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the Group neither transfers nor retaing substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
not refain control of the financial asset.

[#'the Group enfers into (ransactions whereby i transfers assets recognised on iis balance sheet but retaing
either all or substantially atl of the risks and rewards of the transferied assets, the transferred assets are
not derccagnised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on
the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
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financial labtiity extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the
consolidated staiement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Group currently has a legalfy enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
infends eliher (o settle them on a ned basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simulaneously,

Fuir Value

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies
mentioned above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset o paid to transfer a
lability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
meagsurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Hability
1akes place eithes:

{i) in the principal market for the asset or kiability; or

{ii}in the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

A assets and Babilities for which fair value s measured or disclosed in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels, as deseribed
as follows, the inputs fo vatuation techniques used fo measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the
highest priority 10 quoted prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities (Leve! 1 inputs) and
the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 inputs).

Level 1: quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inpuis other than quoled prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements at fair value
on a recurring basis, the Group detennines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period.

3.7 Property, plant and eqaipment

Recognition and measurement

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable
that future economic benefits associaled with the tem will flow 10 the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably and is measured at cost. Subseguent to recognition, all items of property, plant
and equipment are stated at cost less accumulaied depreciation and accumulated impairment Josses,

if the cost of an individual part of preperty, plant and equipment is significant relative 10 the total cost
of the item, the individual part is accounted for and depreciated separately.
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The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises s purchase price plus any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition neoessary for it 1o be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoralion and
similar liabilities, i any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

l{ems sueh as spare parts, stand-by cquipments and servicing that meets the definition of property, plam
and equipment are capitaiised a1 cost and deprecimed over the useiud life. Cosi of repairs and
maintenance are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and Toss as and when incurred.

Capital work in progress and Capital advances:

Assels under construction includes the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not ready 10 use at
1he balance sheet date. Advances paid to acquire property. plant and equipment before the balance sheet
date are disclosed under other non-current assets. Assets under construction are nof depreciated as these
assels are not yet available for use,

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided using the straight line method over
ihe estimated useful Hives prescribed by Schedule 11 of the Act, except for certain items of plant and
machinery (such as welding machine, drilling machine, porta cabin etc. whose useful life has been
estimated to be five years) whetein depreciation is provided based on the estimated vseful lives of the
plant and machinery so acquired, determined by the Group's management based on the technical
evaluation carried out by the projects team. Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-
rata basis i.e. from {upto) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of). The useful lives used,
as set out in the following table, are fower than or as those specified in Schedule H of the Act as under:

Assels Life in no, of vears Schedule Il useful lives
Office butldings 00 years 60 years

Plant and equipment 3 years 10 15 years 15 vears

Furniture and fixtures 3 years to 10 years 10 vears

Vehicles 3 years to 10 years 8§ years to 10 years
Computer hardware 3 vears to 6 vears 3 years / 6 years

Lease hold improvements are amortised over the primary lease period or the useful life of the assets,
whichever is lower.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Assets costing INR 5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the year/period of purchase,
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Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fuiure economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition is measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit and foss in the period the assel is derecognised,

Goodwill and other intangibie ussers
Goadwilt

Goodwill is initially recognised as the excess of consideration paid and acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable net assets of acquired business. Subsequent 1o initial measurement, goodwill is
measwured at cost less accumulated impairment, if any. Goodwill is allocated 1o the cash-generating unit
which 15 expected o benefit from the business combination.

Other idangible assets

Intangible assets comprise primarily of computer software (including enterprise systems). Intangible
assets are initially recorded at cost and subsequent 10 recognition, intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accurmulated impairment losses.

Intangibic asscts ynder development

The Group expenses costs incurred during research phase to profit or loss in the year in which they are
incurred. Development phase expenses are initially recognised as infangible assets under development
until the development phase is complete, upon which the amount is capitalised as intangible asset.

Intangible assets acguired under business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are
initially recognised at their fair value on the acquisilion date (which is regarded as their cost),

Subsequent 10 initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reporied at
cost fess accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assels that are acquired separately.

Amortisation

Goodwill is considered to have indefinite useful life and hence is not subject 1o amortisation but tested
for impairment at least annually.

Other intangible assets are amortised over an expected benefit period of one fo five years using straight
Iine method.
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The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible assel with finite usefut life is
reviewed at the end of each financial year. H any of these expectations differ from previous estimates,
such changes are aceounied for as a change in an accounting estimate.

Derecognition

An item of intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future cconomic benefits are
expecied from s use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derccogniiion of an Hem of infangible asset is
measured as he difference between the nel disposai proceeds and the carrying amousnd of the tiem and
is recognised in the consolidated statement o profit and loss in the pertod the assel is derecognised,

Inventories

Inventories comprise cost of purchase, and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories fo their
present location and condition. Material at central stores comprises wiring, cabling and air-conditioning
material, components, stores and spares. Stock in trade comprises of land acquired for land development
prajecis.

lnventories are valued ai lower of cost or net realisable value; cost is determined on the moving weighted
average method basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, fess estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary 10 make the sale.

Impairment
Impairment of non-derivative financiul ussets and confract assels

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date 1o determine whether there is objective evidence that
i is impaired. A financial assel is impaired if objective evidence indicafes that a loss event has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

The Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss

allowance on the following:

(i} Frade receivables unbilled receivables; and contract assets

(i1} Financial assets measured at amortised cost (other than trade receivables, unbilled receivabies and
contract assets).

In case of frade receivables and contract revenue receivables, the Group follows a simplified approach
wherein an amount equal {o lifetime ECL is measured and recognition as loss allowance. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amowit equal to the 12 month ECL, unless
there has been a significant increasc in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured at lifetime of ECL.
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ECL is the difference between alt contractual cash flows that are due 1o the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects 10 receive (i.e. all cash shorifalls), discounted
at the original effective interest rate,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defaults events over the expected
life of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a partion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events
that are possible within 12 months firom the reporting date.

ECL are measured iy a manner that they reflect unbiased and profitabiiity welghted amoums determined
by a range of ouicomes, taking into account the time vatue of money and other reasonable information
available as a result of past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the foss allowance at the
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or foss
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Lipairient of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s non-financial assels, other than inventories and deferred 1ax assets,
is reviewed at each reporting dale 1o determine whether there is any Indication of impairment, IT any
such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expecied
10 bencfit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of a CGU {or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and s fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment oss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
(or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is netl subsequenily reversed. In respeci of other assets for
which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Group reviews at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no fonger exists. An impairment loss is
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reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a
reversal is made anly 1o the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Esployee benefity
Short-term emplayee benefits

Shori-term cmployee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basts and are expensed as the
related service is provided, A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g.. under short-
term cash bonus, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation ro pay this amaount as a result
of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefifs
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a plan for the post employment benefil of an employee under which the
Group pays fixed periodic contributions into Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Corporations
in accordance with Indian regulations. The Group has no further legal or constructive obligation 10 pay
once contributions are made. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised
as an employee benefit expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the periods during
which the related services are rendered by employees. In respect of overseas entities, the Group’s
contribution towards defined contribution benefit plan is accrued in compliance with the domestic laws
of the country in which the consolidated foreign entities operate.

Defined benefit plans

The Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan, The Group's net obligation in respect of
the gratuity benefit scheme is caleulated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
carned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
its present value,

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of cmployee benefit entitlement and measures each unit
separately to build wp the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the
estimated futare cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation
under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on Government securitics as at the balance
sheet dale.

All remeasurement gains and fosses arising from defined benefit plans are recognised in the consolidaled
statement of other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and not reclassified 1o the
consalidated statement of profit and loss in the subsequent period. The Group determines the net interest
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expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by appiying the discount rate
used 10 measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined benefit liabifity (asset}, taking inlo account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset)
during the period as a resuft of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates 1o past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the consolidased
starement of profit and loss. The Group recognises gaing and losses on the sextlement of a defined benefit
plan when (he settiement occurs in the consolidated statement of profit and loss,

In respect of the overseas subsidiaries, pravision is made Tor employees' terminal benefits on the basis
prescribed under the labour laws of the respective countries in which the overseas subsidiaries operates
and is determined based on arithmetic calculation.

Other fong-terns emplovee benefits

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-ferm employment benefits, other than gratuity, is the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods. The obligation is calcufated at the balance sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation done
by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method and is discounted to ifs present value
and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. Remeasurements gains or losses are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profil and loss in the period in which they asise,

Compensated absences which are not expected 1o occur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. The discount rates used for determining the
present value of the obligation under long term employment benefits, are based on the marke! yields on
Gavernment securities as at the balance sheet date.

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required 1o settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific fo the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected
fulure operating losses are noi provided for.

A disclosuie for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not rcquire an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic henefits is
remote, ho provision or disclosure is made.
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A contingent asset is disclosed where an inllow of economic benefits is probable.
Onerolts contructs

A contract is considered o be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Group
from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeling its obligations under the contract, The
provision for an onerous congract is measured at the present value of the fower of the expected cost of
wrminating e comract and 1he expecied net cost of continuing with the comract. Beiore such a
provision is made, the Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Revenue recognition

The Group has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, with effect from 01 April
2018. The Group has applied the following accounting policy for revenue recognition:

Revenue from contfracts with customers:
The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step modef as set out in
Ind AS 115:

Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with & customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or
more parties thal creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract
ihat must be met.

Step 2. 1dentify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitied in exchange for transferring promised goods or services 1o a
customer, excluding amounts coliected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation, the Company will atlocate the transaction price 10 each
performance obligation in an amount that depicis the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects 1o be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entily satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

I. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefils provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs; or

2. The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the custfomer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced; or
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3. The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the entity
has an enforcealle right to payment for performance completed to date.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty. The Group assesses its revenue
arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has
conciuded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

Revewmue from works conirgers

Coniract prices are either fixed or subtject to price escalation clauses. Revenue from works contracts is

recognised on the bagis of percentage completion method, and the leved of completion depends on the

nature and type of each contract including:

a) Unbilled work-in-progress valued at net realisable value upto the stage of completion; and

b) amounts due in respect of the price and other escalation, bonus claims and/or variation in contract
work approved by the cusiomer/third parties etc. where the contract alfows for such claims or
variations and there is evidence tha{ the customer/third party has accepted it

Revenue from works contracts, where performance obligation is satisfied over time, is recognised under
the percentage of completion method by reference to the stage of completion of the coniract activity.
The stage of completion is measured by calenlating the proportion thal costs incurred 1o date bear to the
estimated total costs of a contract. Determination of revenues under the percentage of conpletion method
necessarily mvolves making estimates by the Group, some of which are of a technical nature, concerning,
where relevant, the percentages of completion, costs to completion, the expected revenues from the
project / activity and the foresecable losses to completion. The estimates of cost are periodically
reviewed by the management and the effect of changes in estimates is recognised in the period such
changes are identified,

Revenue from services performed on contracts from the end of the last billing to the balance sheet date
is recognised as unbilled receivables (financial asset). A receivables represents the Group’s right 10 an
amount of consideration that is unconditional i.c. only the passage of time is required before payment of
consideration is due

A contract asset is the right {0 consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred o the
customers. 11 the Group performs Hs obligation by transferring goods or services to a cusiomer before
cuglomer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned
consideration which is conditional. The contract assets are wransferred (o receivables when the rights
become unconditional

A contract Hability is the obligation 1o transfer goods or services 1o a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from customer, Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Amounts relained by the customers unt the satisfactory completion of the contracts are recognised as
receivables.




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the conseclidated Ind AS financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

34

Any variations in contract work, ¢laims, incentive payments are included in the transaction price if it is
highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue will nol occur once associated uncerlainties are
resclved.,

Consideration is adjusted for the time value of money if the period between the transier of goods or
services and the receipt of payment exceeds twelve months and there is a significant financing benefit
either to the customer or the Company.

CONEFACT COSIS dre recognised as expenses as incurred unkess they create an asset relaied © fuiure contract
activity. An expected loss on a contract is recopnised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss. Liguidated damages/ penalties arc accounted as per the contract terms wherever there is a
delayed delivery atiributable to the Group.

Reveane from sale of goods

Revenue is recognised af point in time when the control of asset is transferred to the customer on
contracfual terms. Revenue represenis the invoice value of goods provided to third parties net of
discounts and sales taxes/value added taxes/poods and service tax.

Operation and maintenance income:

The Group recognises revenue from Operations & Maintenance services using the time-elapsed measure
of progress Le input method on a straight line basis.

Income from consultuncy servicey

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over time as and when the customer receives the
benefit of the Group’s performance and the Group has an enforceable right 10 payment Tor services
transferred.

Multiple deliverable arrangements

When 1wo or more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single arrangement,
each deliverable that is considered 10 be a separate unii of account is accounted for separately. The
allocation of consideration from a revenue arrangement o its separate units of account is based on the
relative fair value of each unit, If the fair value of the delivered item is not reliably measurable, then
revenue s allocated based on the difference between the total arrangement consideration and the fair
value of the undelivered item,

Advances from custonters and progress payments

Advances received from customers in respect of contracis are treated as liabilities and adjusted against
progress billing as per terms of the contract.
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Progress payments received are adjusted against amount receivable from customers in respect of the
coniract work performed.

Leases

The Group adopted IND AS 116 - Leases using the modified retrospective approach with effect from
iniiafty applying this standard from Tst April, 2019,

The Group has adopied modified refrogpective approach where lease Hability is measured at a present
value of remaining lease payment discounted at the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. The Group has adopted a policy of measuning the Right of-use Assel at an amount equal 10
lease Hability with the result of no net impact on refained eamings and no restatement of prior period
comparalives.

Accounting policy applicabie before 15t April 2019

Determining wiether an arrange contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or comrdains a lease. Al
inceplion or on reassessment of the arrangement that confains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other
clemends on the basis of their relative fair values. If if is concluded for a finance fease that it is
impracticable to separate the payvments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount
equal 10 the fair value of the underlying asset. The liability is reduced as payments are made and an
imputed finance cost on the Hability is recognised using the incrementai borrowing rate.

Assers held under feases

Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer 10 the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. The leased assets are measured initially af an amount equal
to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the assels are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable 10
similar owned assets.

Assets held under leases that do not gransfer 10 the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership (Le. operating leases) are not recognised in the Group’s Balance Sheet,

Lease payinenis

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless such payments are structured to increase
in fine with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.
lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of
1he [ease.
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Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and
the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is atlocated 1o each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Accounting policy applicable from April 1, 2019

From the date of initial application Ind AS 116, the classification of expenses has changed from lease
rent (included in other expenses) in previous year to amortisation expense of right-oi-use asset, and
finance cost for interest unwaound on lease Hability.

At inception of & contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a jease. A contract is,

or conlains, a lease if the contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use

of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

- the contract involves the use of an idemtified asset — this may be specified explicitly or imphicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset.
If the lessor has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified.

- the Group has the right to obtain substantiaily all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

- the Group as a lessee has the right 1o direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when if has
the decision~making rights that are most relevant 1o changing how and for what purpose the asset is
used. In rare cases where the decision aboul how and for what purpose the asset i used is
predetermined, the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:
o the Group as a lessee has the right 1o operate the asset; or
o the Group as a lessee designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it

will be used.

For effect of applying Ind AS 110 - Leases on transition period refer Note 4.1,
The Group as o lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability al the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying assel or 1o resiore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assets are subsequently deprecialed using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to 1he earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is reduced by iinpairment losses, if any, and adjusted for
ceriain remeasurements of the lease Hiability.
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The lease Hability is inttially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using the incremental borrowing rate.

It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guaraniee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension
or termination oplion.

When the lease labality is remeaswred in this way, a corresponding adjusiment is made to the carrying
amounl of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or Joss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced 10 zero,

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straightline basis over the lease term.

The Graup as lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines afl lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or
an operating lease.

Whenever the terms of the lease transier subsiantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lesses,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. Al other leases are classified as operating leases. Rental
income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased assef and
amortised over the lease ferm on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the peried in which they are earned.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its inlerests in the head lease and the sublease
separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
ariging from the head fease.

Recoguition of dividend income, inlerest incane or expense

Dividend income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss on the date on which the
Group’s right to receive paymeit is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipis
through the expected life of the financial instrument 16:
- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial Liability,
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In calculaling interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied 1o the gross carrying
amount of the asset {(when the assel is not credit-impaired} or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, Tor financial assets that have become credii-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If
the asset is no longer eredit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Income fux

Income ax comprises current and deferred fax. 1 is recognised m the consolidaied sintemen of profii
and loss except to the extent that it refates (o a business combination or (0 an item recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive incomae,

Curret tax

Current tax comprises the expecied tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment 1o the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the iax amount expected {0 be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, i any, related to income taxes. It is measured using applicable tax rates (and 1ax laws)
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceabie right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and sefttle the lability on a net basis or
simultancously.

Miuimur Alternative Tax ((MAT)

Minimum Alternative Tax (*MAT’) under the provisions of the Tncome-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as
current tax in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. The credit available under the Act in respect
of MAT paid is recognised as a deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be
carried forward {or set-ofT against the normal tax lability, MAT credit recognised as a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and writlen down 1o the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence
no longer exists,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporiing purposes and the cosresponding amounts used Tor taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:
- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaciion thaf is
noi a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the tine
of the transaction;
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3.19

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements 1o the extent that
the Group is able to controf the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences acising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future faxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Group
recognises a deferred 1ax asset only 1o the extent that it has sufficiem taxable wemporary differences or
there ts convineing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which sueh
deferred tax assel can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised ot recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it s probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferted 1ax is measured af the (ax rates that are expected to apply 1o the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or subsiantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Deferred tax asscis and labilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabiiities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the saime fax authority on the same taxable
entily, or on different 1ax entifies, but they inlend to settle current tax |iabilities and assets on a net basis
or their 1ax assels and liabilities will be realised simulianeously.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and olher costs {including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustiment 1o interest costs) incurred in connection
witl the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an
asset which necessarily (ake a substantial period of time (o get ready for their intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset.

Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the peried in which they are incurred.
Iuvesiments

[nvesiments that are readity realisable and intended 10 be held for not more than a year from the date of
acquisition are classified as current investiments. All other investments are classified as long-term

investimenis.

Any reductions in the carrying amount and any reversals of such teductions are charged or credited to
1he consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Cost of investiments include acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.
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3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

Profit oy loss on sale of investments is determined on the basis of first in first out (FIFO} basis of carrying
amount of investment disposed off.

Conselidated statement of cash flows

The Group's consclidated statement of cash flows are prepared using the Indirect method, whereby profit

- for the period is adjusted Tor the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of

past or future operating cash receipts or payments and iteoi of income or expenses associated with
investing or financmg cash flows, The cash flows fram operating, investing and financing aciivities ot
the Group are segregated,

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-tesm fixed bank deposits that are
subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earnings per share
The basic earnings per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders for the period, by the weighled average number of equity shares outstanding during the

periad,

Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average numiber of equity and dilutive (potential) equity
equivalent shares oulstanding during the period except where the results would be anti-dilutive

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided {o the Chief
Operaling Decision Maker (CODM) of the Group. The CODM is responsible for aliocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Group.

Events after reporting date

Where events oceurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the

end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted with the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

Standuards issued bur not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™} notifies new Indian Accounting Standards and/or amendments
1o existing Indian Accounting Standards.

There is no such notification which would be applicable from 01 April 2621.
Recent Pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA™) through a notification, amended
Schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division 1, 1 and 1l of Schedule 11
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and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments refating to Division [l which relate to companies
whose financial statements are required to comply with Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules

2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

- Lease liabilites should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial Jiabilities’, duly distinguished
as cuerent or non-current.

- Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share
capital due 1o prior period errars and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporiing period.
- Specificd format for disclosure of shareholding of promoiers.

- Speeified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in progress and
imangible assel under development.

- 1f a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and
financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

- Specific disclosure under *additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved
schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable
property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial
personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benamt property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:

- Additional disclosures relating fo Corporate Sacial Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and
crypto or virtual currency specified under the head “additional information” in the notes forming
part of financial statements. The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same
to give effect 1o them as required by law.
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ey | Edian rapees {0 crars)
4.1 Right-oliuse assets

Dischosnre under Jad AS T€6, Leases
Al Group ax a Lessee

a} st recopnised in balance sheot

Fotiowang is the movemen iy Right-of-nse assers:

Land and Buildings Tiral
CGross careying ansunt ;
Balance as a1 | Aprit 204 - -
Effect of chanpe i accomting policy frofer note T2 belowy kN1 KRR
Adds Addiions duning the vear a4 PAL]
Add: Eaahipe trvishstton arffeeence du b e vesr (3.9% 108
BBakusee 58 ae 31 Marceh 2024 41.2% 11.2%
Babaser s | Apei] 2020 A1.28 4138
Adds Addivons datng the s - .
I} Drisposils durbeg 1w sear {181} LB}
Eess: Wetten ol dewing the vear (01} (H.623
Add: Excliange anglation difference duving e year 012 412
Balance as at 31 Murch 2021 IReY 3897
LY fied depr
Hatmice as a1 | Apil 2019 - -
Add Depreciation fom e yvear 1341 4l
Add: Ixchange manstmion difference during the year 0.49 449
alance as at 31 March 2020 1980 9.9
Balance os a1 1 Aptil 2020 1290 3
Add: Dzpreciasion far e year i4.60 .60
Lews: Prigposabs dunig the year {1.10) (1103
Add: Excliznge truns!ation ditference duriug tie vear (0.14) (.16}
Taiance as af 31 March 2021 3324 33
Carrying souwaeits
Bnlance as at 3t Muarch 2020 21.38 2338
Rulsnce as at 31 March 2021 574 574

*Canying amount of Right-ofese wssets at the cid of 1lic veporting period is towards property wken on lease for office promises, the wndeclyving leaschold miproveinents 15
presented in note 4 under Properny, plant and equipmen and capial work-m-progress.

Fallowing is fie movement in Lease hiabilies:

Arnoun
Balance asa¢ 1 April 2019
oot of clange in acconming polioy (refer note 12 bebow) LERT
Add: Additions 2.14
Add: Finance wost acerued durimg the year 350
Less: Paymes of lease liatalines (21.44)
AddAess: Effect of farcipn cumeney Aati 031
Badance as xt 31 March 2020 poBi]
Add: Additions -
Add: Finance cost acenned during the veas 137
Add: Gain o modihcation {343
Less: Weiteen off durisy the year {0453
Less: Payvments of lease Habilities v
Addtess: Fifert of forcign curvency Sranslation azr
Balunce as af 31 March 2021 628
bt Amount of depreciation recopnised in the stalcment of profit & loss
Forthe vearended  For dhe yoar coded
31-Mar-21 35-Muar-20

Prepiecintion on Laid aned Guiddips $4.60 94
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$ETrreney T Indian mgees fu crores)
Breakdown of lyuise expoose

Yor i yearended  Far ilbe year cided
JE-Mare-2t 3{-Mar-20
literest ex)rense 1.38 3540
Short-tenin Jense oxponse 2512 a5 s
Total 1950 2928
) CashooutBow on deases
For dhe yearended  Feorihe year ended
31-MarZ} 31-pEar-20
Repaymem af Tease Habidities tncluding Interest on lease 17,10 HES
linkyilities)
Shon-iemn lease ¢xpense 2812 A5 89
Total cusly otlow v feases 45,22 47,33
d1 0 Moty analysis of Jease hiabilines
JE March 2021 Lass than Between 1 and 2 2 and 8 yoars Over 8 years Tatal Weightied
1 year YOuE's AVOrsie
effective
anterest rate
Lease liabdlitios 283 a95 £.76 .75 6.3 1% - ILE0%
3 Maeck 202 Less than Betwoon 1 and 2 2 and S ycars Ohver 5 years Tutal Weighted
i year YCAtS Average
effective
interest rate Ya
Lease dialatitics 28 L H 2 [ LT A 409 - 11.5%
) Impaci of changes in acc ing polick
O 30 Maceh 2019, the Minstry of Corporute Alfuies ("MUA") b the C (Jadian Acg ing Ssanduds} A d Rules, 2019 znd the Compaimes {Indian
Accaunting Standards) Second Amendmenmt Rudes, has notified Ind AS 114 L eases which replaces the c).is.'lm&_ lease slandard, Iud AS 17 Yeascs and ather imenprctations,
O ransition 1o Jad AS 116, the Cisoup cleated to apply the pracieal expedient 1o grandfadior the sssessmom of which tanssctions are leases, The Group applied Ind AS 116
only t contracts that sere previously idomificd as loases under Ind AS 17, Therefore, the definstion of'a fease wnder bnd AS 116 was applied only ta contraets entered tmo or
chasped o or after § April 2019
The CGroup adapsted i AS 114 - Leases using e modiBed retrospootive approach with: ofifcct from innially appiving this eandard from | April 2019, Accordingly, the
infermation presented for previous year ended 31 March 2019 s reparnied a5 per Ind AS 17 and arc et retrospectively adiusied.
Thhe Growp has adogied modified retrospective apprasch wiere lease Jishilin is d sy walue ol e tease pay dise d al fhe incr 1 Bsarrowing
rate at 1he dare of initial applicaion. The Group has adepied o palicy of ing e Right of-use Asset st am amonrst £Quma] to boase Hability with she restlt of ne net imgract on
retained exmings and no resiaicment of poios period compasstives.
f  Reconciliaréon heew een oporating lesse commitments dischrsed in March 2019 financials applying Ind AS 17 and lease labilities recogaised in the balance shect

Particolars Re in creres
Cperating lease commiznents disclosed in Mareh 2019 financisls {under ind AS 17) 4383
Less; Disconnting impact 15,67}
Lerase fiabilities vecognised in fhie babance sheet a5 o0 | April 2085+ 3814

4 The Group lias adopted a policy of mcasuring the Right of use Asset a1 an amount equal 1o lease Hability on initsl applization of ind AS }Hé
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(Cierency @ Indiun rmipecs in erores)

4.1

[LH

#)

Iy}

Disclosure wmder Tad AN VRO, Teases (Cairtiireed)

Crronp as 8 Lessor

The Indian subsidiny company bas given office building on lease to refuted panties fur e perieds anging from 12 minths 10 36 months. Infvial direce costs noumed in
negotiating and areaigimy an operating lease ae added to the coanving anaw of the deased asser mud amortsed aver ke lease eem on the sune basis o reniad ineone.
Cromitgesd tems are recopmisad as revenne iz the peood inowhich they sre comed.

Ameunts recaznizcd in statement of profit and loss

Year cuded 31
March 2021
(in crores)

Year cnded J1
Murch 2020
{in crares)

Fental incame fonk retated party (sefer note $0.2)

.34

LR

Lissdiscounted lease paymcris to be reccived afier 37 Mareh

2

Year erded 31
March 2021
(in_croresh

Vear ended 31
March M2

| s than aine year
Thetweent | amd 2 vesrs
2and §years

Chver § yoars

Tatat undiscoutited lease pavineins 10 be received”

ental incame 10 be received post 3t Warch 2021 will e eliminated while preparing «

receivable from selated panty powt 31 March 2021,

3

d financial

. Aceordingdy, the group will nit have any fease payment
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5

a)
h)

intangible asscts and intangible assets under deveiopment

Particulars Comprater

Goodwill sefiware Tutai

Badance as a1 Agnil 2659 1747 17.22 EER S
Add Additionz dering the voar . 1864 104
Less: Disposals dusing 1he year L] 1234} {7
Adel. Excliapge transiation difference during the year . ot nuT
Tiadanee as &t 31 March 2020 ] 1599 156
Tiadance as a1 Apnl 2020 127 1309 1260
Add. Additions dernng e vear . S (X433
Lesa: Fhsposals dasing the yeae . [ TR} [ TE)
Add Fxchange transdation deffercous: duniey the ven . [ G0y Eiktan]
Babaner ke s 31 Mascl 3ok 1370 152 25
Agcwnbaded aroctisacion and tagairment lussess

Labsmes a5 an d Agit 2609 ncluding inspaament 1.37 78 ® 75
Add. Amoimisation for the vear - 309 3.0
Lesa: Thsponsals daring: The yeay (147 147
Add. Exchange panslation duiercnce during e year - 13 (M 0.6
Hakznce 25t 31 Mareh 2020 1.3% LR 53
Ralzoue a5 at | Apnt 2020 1.37 916 1053
Add- Amortisation {or T vear - 216 Sl
Les: Digposals during the vea - {0,953 193]
Add. Lxchanpe ansbzion e ence dureayg eyt - [0.03) [LEROS
Heatanre 3% 2 33 Moed 2021 1.37 140,59 117§
A1 3 Muecl 20624 1133 ERE] 14.16
Ad 31 Marels 2621 1133 286 1420

Naotes:
Nil amoung of Derewing cost is capitiised during 2le current and comparstive periods.

Nil amaunt of impaiement $oss is recognised duting the current and comparative periods,

Goodwill

The Growp lesis goadwill on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the CGY 1o which the goodwill bas hicen atlacated may be snpaired. The
goodwill impainient test is perfbrmed at the level of the CGU or group of CG ks that beneds from the synergies of the acquisition and which represents the lowest
level at which poedwill is monitored for intemal managemenst purpases. e recoverable amount is determined based on higher of vialue-incuse and fair vilue less
cost of disposal. Where there is no basis for making a relisble estimuie of the price #1 which an orderly transaction 1o sell the asset would take place between
market participants a1 e measwrement date under cuerent market sonditions, the Tecoverable amenns is determined by value-in-use. Jn determining, 1he valpe-in-
use, cash flow prajectiongs approved by appropriate Tevel of wasagement are considered. In circumstances where a reliabie value-tn-use estimate i difficalt 1
mizke whereas market value of the asset or the OO or group of CGLIs is readiby available, the falter is ased for the dewnnination of recoverable amoun( with
appropriate adjusimerds, where applicabie.

Apant from the sbservable market imlormation, significant management ¢stimates and judpments are wsed 1o determine the recoveraie amounis based on valug-in-
use. Koy assumplions on which managenent las based iis determisation of recoveralle amount includes estimated growth zates (including serminal growth rates),
marging and discount rates. Cash flow projections are usually considered for next 3-5 years and represent ianagoment’s best estimate abowt fture developments
with due consideration for past performance. Cash lows bevond the five-year periad are extrapolaied ysing lerminal growth rales.

Goudwill acguired through business combinations with indeGnite lives has Been allocated (o foflowving CGLY's

LEntity name 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Range consultauds private limited 4.75 475
Sterling and Wikson Security Svstoms Private Limited 1.04 1.09
Sterling & Wilson Migeria Limited 549 549
Total 11.33 11.33

The goodwill is lested for impairment and accordinply nie impairmem charges was identified for FY 2020-21 (Nil for FY 2019-20).




Sterling and Wilson Private Lunited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as af 31 March 2021

{Currency ; Indin repees m Crores)

6

Investments accounted for using eqaity method

(a1 Ungquoded, i Joind Vendures

BUR 16,68, 346 share quofa |31 March 2020: EUR 16,68.346) Co. Stell S.r.b.

EUR 5.000 share quota {3 March 20200 :UR 5,000} #.7.C 5.A S D1 Burzaini Massimo
PR 72,201,968 shure guola (31 March 20007 EUR 72,21 968]) STC Power Sl

S'lcr-li-ng & Wilson I.’uwcrl Salutions 1.0
{147 131 March 2020: 147} shares o AED 1LGO0 cach. fully puii-up 1
_ess - Share of fosses iy 4ssouite

Agaregide pinent of unguoted investmenis;
Agarepate amonud of impairment in value of investinens

Other Investments

{a) Investment in equity instruments (at fair value throngh profit or loss)
Sterling and Wilson Saudi Arabis Limtied®

00§31 March 2020 : 500] shares of SAR £.00 each, fully paid up

wonjm nterviews Private Limited

A37.037 |31 Marcl: 2020: 237,057)] shares of Rs i each, Nadly paid-up
Transie] Vitilities Tid Uik s+

10 {31 March 2020 1 10] shares of GBP | each, Ny paid up

SWI3 Pawer Ligd¥¥

10§31 March 2020: 10} shares of GBP  each. {ully paid wp

Less: Provision for impaimsment

31 March 2421

31 March 202

14,72 15.84
0.33 0.55
.25 0.25

0.25) (0,253

15,05 16,39

15,04 1639
0,09 0.9

19.91 10.91
800 .
8.00 -

.09 (009

19.9] 198}

* The Group has a share oF 5% i shure capital of the Sterling and Wilson Saudi Arabia Limiled. a conpany incorporated in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
who is engaged in construction of electrical and mechanical works. Doring the year 2019-20. managenent has provided for the simpairment on its

ivvesiment.

¢ The investiments in Transtel Eiilities Lid, UK and SWI3 Power 1ad. are shown at Cost since the isformation abom the Thir value of those invesimenls

are not available, Management is of the view that the difitrence between Cost and Fair value 15 not material.

# The Investment value is less than Q.01 crore.

Investiment in prefevence sharves

(a) Unguoted, in fellow subsidiarics (at fair valuc through profit or loss)
Sterting Generators Private Lanited

300,000 [31 March 2020: 300,000] 4% redeeinable, non-convertible, noo-cumalative preference shares of Ry
1000 each, Tulby paid-up. The preference shares are redeemable afier & period of 7 vears from the date of
issue cither at aption of the Company at premium 16 he fixed hased on expent's valuation repont.

Aggregate amount of unguoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

50,46 5334
7437 7345
.37 7345

0069 0.09



Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
axar 34 March 2027

(Currency ; hndisn rupees n crores)

31 Murch 2021 31 March 2020

8 Loans
{Unsecured considered good unless othernvise siated}

To parties other than relared parites

Security deposils

Considered good 17.82
Considered doubisnl -

11.82

Loss, Proviswm for Securty D{:pnsils{"

Lomwn o bhird party

Considered pood* 43.98 12074

Comsidered doubiiul 2.14 -
_ 46.13 12574

Less: Provision for doubtful Loan 215 -
4398 3174

To relaied parties

Considered good®* 58.48 4526
Considered daubtiial 1.42 1,32
59.90 4658
Less. Prosiston for doabtful Loan .42 1.32
5848 4526
114.28 178 43

= The loan given by subsidiary company is denaminated in United Siates Dollars {USDY. Loan to thisd party includes Rs. 3155 crore (3] March 202(:
Rs 4995 crore canying interest rate al 3% pev annum and s recctvable ot later than 2 vears from the date of disbussement of the prncipal amount in
the year 2019-20, Rs. 6.92 erore (31 March 202 Rs 748 cvore) does not alract inlerest and 15 receivabie not later than 2 years Trom e date of
disbursement of the principal amount 1n the year 2006.20, Rs. 2005 crore (31 March 2020 Bs 17 69 crore) carmying interest rate at 3% per annam and
Is receivable not later than 2 vears from the date of disbursement of the principal amount, Rs. 7.62 crore (31 March 2020: Rs 7.62 crore) carmying interest
rale ai 3% per annum and is recefvable not ater than 2 years from the date of dishusement of the principal amount in e year 201920 and Rs. 4119
crore {31 March 2020 Rs 3% crore) carying intorest rate af 3% per ansum and i5 reccivable on or before 30th Septenvber 2022

% The Joan 10 4 related party includes Rs. 6.5 crore (31 March 2020: Rs 228 crore) denominated in Arab Emirates Dirham (ALZDY, is ansecured,
mterest free and is reecelvable not later than 31 March 2023 or such iater date as shalt be apreed by the paitics, Ry, 4085 crove (31 March 20200 Ry
35,84 crores) was originally loan advanced 1o W Power Limited. During ihe year 201920, by virue of an assigoment agreenent, the loan has been
assigned 10 a related panty. Fhe Joar 1s denominated in Great Britain Pound (GBP), is unsecured, inferest free and s payable not later than 29 August
2022 or such later dawe as shall be apreed by G partics,

The Group calculated the fair vaiue of the loans o related party by discounting the contractust cash fows fo its present valoe using e discownt yate of
5.3% per annum. As a resull of discounting, the impwied imterest expense of Ry, 1.52 (31 March 2020: Rs 3.06 crore) is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprolensive Incoma,

¥ The unsecured loan given by subsidiary company having an outstanding balance of Rs 768.07 crores {31 March 2020: Rs 44252 crores) camving
iterest rale of §% p.a wherein interest is repayable on demand and principal al the opticn of the bomewer on or before 31 March 2023,

Pues fron firms o1 privale compaunies in which any director is a pariner or a divector or member:
Transiel Likinies g, U 47.34 3812
# Value ess than 0.01 crore

9 Other non-current financial assets
Bank deposits® (due 1o mature affer 12 months fram reporiing dafe) 3.69 4.61
569 4.61

* Bank deposit to the extent of Ry 5.67 crore (31 March 2020; Rz 4,60 crore) is held as margin monay of securily against the borrowings, pearaniees,
ather conumisments.




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Convintied)
as af 3f March 2021

{Currency © Indian rupees in crores)

3 March 2021 34 March 2020
14 Deferred {ax assels (net)
Lheferred wex assets
Emplovee benetits 20004 207
Provisian for bad and doubiful debts and Joans and sdvances 939 11.15
Provision for Toreseeable losses 32 420
Provision Tor Joans and advances 1.83 .
Carey Forward business losses ¥ 3425 TR 62
ITmparment aowanees 1.7% |.32
Property, plant and equipmen .18 .20
Linithsorbed depreciation 19.24 9,24
MAT crodi 3,40 540
Others 4.23 -
Unreabised Exchange Diflerence - 371
95.49 14454
Deferred tax fabifities
Property, plant and equipsment 12.57 12.67
Fair valuation of invesimends 213 190
Cy undistributed prefits of a subsidiany 1.66 124
Writeback of Provision for hquidated damages 126 11.26
14,61 16.07
DVieferred tax assels recognised, nel TH.88 128 47
1.1 Deferred 1ax Habilivies {net)
Deferved ay assets
Traperty, plat and eauipnwent - -
Deferved rax liabilities
Praperty, plant and equipment 4.13 il
0.13 .11
Deferred tax liabilities recopnised, net .13 011

* Represents deferred 1ax assel recognised on carmied forward business 1oss of Rs 92 .81 crore (31 March
2020: Rs 33.33 crore)

11 Noan-currest tax assets (nef)

Advince (ax {net of provision for tax of Rs §2.74 crore [31 March 2020: Rs 76.14 crore]} 37.15 12895
finchudes fringe bencfits tax and wealth iax)

3715 JIR G5
12 Other non-curreni assets
{Uinsecured, considered good)
Fo parties other than related poriies
Prepayments 300 257
Capital advances 338 337

6.30 6,14




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Nodes to the consolidaled {inancial statements (Continued)
as at 31 Marel 2021

{Currency : Indian supees in croresy

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
13 Iaventorics
(valued @t tower of cost and net realisable value unless otherwise stcdedy
Consirsiction maferials, stores and spare parts 18.97 28.75
Ginciudes inventory in transit Rs Nil [31 Marchs 2020: Nif]; and net of Rs Nil [31 March 2020: Rs
2,75 crore] provided 1owards invertory obsolescence)
Stock-in-trade 59.95 39.35
7892 68.Hi
Carrying amomd o0 nventories Qnciaded above ) piedped as secunties 10r borrowings iT.h3 2481
The writc-down of fpventories 10 nel veahiseble value during the year anounted 0 Rs Nt {31 March
203y Ra Nil].
14 Current invesimenis

Invesiment i cquity instruncnts
{Measured at fair value thirough profi and foss)
Quotcd:
Cromnpton Greaves Consumer Blectsical Fimited® 0.06 0.00
6 |31 March 2020 6] Lguity shares of Rs 14 cach, fully paid-up
CG Povver & Industrial Solution Limiled® 0L40 .00
6 |31 March 2020 : 6] Lquity shares of Re 14 ¢ach, fuily paid-up
Ruchi Soya Limited?® 0.60 0.00
2|31 March 2020 : 2] Fquity shares of Rs 10 cach, fufly paid-up
Arshiva Limited - 3540
Nil |31 March 2020 :281.250] Equity shares of Rs 2 cach, fully paid up
Tata Consuilaney Services Linted 639 023
1232 {31 March 2020 ¢ 1,232] Lquify shares of Bs 10 each fully paid-up
Unguated:
Western India Sugar & Chemical Industries Limited® .00 0.00
400131 March 2024 : 400] Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up
Mid East India Limited® .60 0.60
300 {31 hMarch 2020 : 300] Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fulfy paid-up
Mountari Leather Limited® 0.00 .00
1000 [31 March 2020 © 1 000] Eqguity shares of Rs 10 cach fully paid-up
Otoklin Plants and Pquipment's Limited* f.u8 Q.60
500 {31 hMarch 2020 : 308 Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up
STV Limiled {South India Viscose Limited) G.0F 0.01
GO0 {31 March 2020 ; 600} Equity shares of Rs [0 each, fully paid-ug
Sudhit Hosiery Limited 001 .03
2500 |31 March 2020 : 2,500] Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fubly paid-up
Lass: Provision for diminution in the value of quoted and unguoted current investntents (0.03) {6.74)
Total (a) 0.38 0.41

*Vatue less than 0001 crore




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Nodes to the consolidated financial statements (Confinued)
as af 31 Marele 202]

{Currency : Indian rupees in crores)

31 March 2021 31 March 202¢
14  Current investments (Continued)
Investment in dehentares
(Meuasured a1 amordised cosl)
Western India Supar & Chem. indusiries Limited LR .00
300 [31 March 2620 : 300] 15% Debentures of Rs 50 each, Rully paid-up
Fotal (b} (.04 0.00
Investrment in Motual Fands
{Micaswiod af fab valoe tirougl prolit aid tess)
NP3 March 2020: 41872 unns| Rehance Ligutd Pand - - (.02
Treasury Plan-Growth Oplion
ZS0,000 units [31 March 2020 ;0 25G,000 unitsi Union Leng .30 (.28
Bomd Fund Growth
Total (¢} .30 .30
Total (athH+¢) (LGR (7
*Value teys than (.01 crore
The agpregate ook value snd market value of quoted current investments and book value of unquoted
curreit imvestments are as follows:
Ageregate amount of guoted investmenis 439 U.42
Agaregate market value of quoted investments .39 0.42
Aggregate amourt of smqueted investaents 0.30 028
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 0.03 0.74
15 Trade receivahles
{Unsecured)
Trade Recervable
- Considered good* 2.634.46 3,398.35
- Doubiiul 127.90 i08.96
2,762.36 3.507.3%
Loss allowance **
- Doubifidl 127.90 HIE 96
127,96 108 96
MNet trade receivables 2.634.46 3.398.35
O the above, frade receivables from related pantics are as below:
Tofal wrade receivables from related partics 21340 40523
21340 405,25

As at 31 March 2021, trade receivabies includes retention of Rs 412,88 crores {31 March 2020: Rs 376,80 crores] relaung w0 construction
contracls in progress.




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial siatements (Continued)
as i 31 March 2021

(Curreney @ badian rupees in erores)

1%

31 March 2021 3% March 2020

Trade receivables (Continued)

Note:

Certain customer bafances wnder Trude Receivale are subject (o balance confinsations and reconciliations, if any. The Group has also received
balunce confirmuation replics fFom cortain customers and are in the process of reconciling those balances with that as per books of accomnts. The
management is of the view that the inpact on Statement of Profit and Loss will not be material.

*= The foss ablowanee on wrade receivables has been computed on the basis of Ind AS 109, Finanoal Inshruments, which reguires such
ablowwance to be made even oy wade recelvables considered good on the basis that credit visk wxisis even thouph it nsy be very Jow, The
Group's exposure to credit and currency risk, and boss sflowanees related 1o trade recoivabies are dizclosed in nofe 56

Unsimipaired recefvables and amowts due from related parties are cansidered collectible based on historic experience. B is not the practice of the
Ciroup 1o ohtwin collateral over recenvables,

Dues from firms or private compandes in which any director is a parner or a director or member ¢

Shapoerii Patlonii and Company Private Limited 27.68 4784
Sterling Gemerators Private Limited - 29
Serling and Wilson Powergen Private | imited .62 104

2830 63,79




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as et 31 March X2

(Curreney ; Indian rupees i cromes)

16 Cash and cash cguivalents
Bakances with Tunk
- current accounis

Chegues, drafis on hand
Cash on hand

17 Bank balances ofther than cash and cash equivalents

Fiwed deposits winh hanks {wish originegd mmurity more tan 3 months bat ess dan 12 moaths) @

{nelades mterest recavable of Bs 0.05 erore (31 Mareh 202G - R 0.005 arow}

BMargin money deposits %%

31 March 2421

H March 2024

85.00 144 77
0.14 -
A.50 (.83

85.70 14560

16,53 R
1.26 5.68

45.43 &3 80

* Jixed deposit with banks 1o the extent of Rs 46.74 crore §31 March 2020: Rs 58.09 crore] is beld as margin maney or security agamsi the

borrowings, guarantees, other commiiments,

¥ Margin money deposits Rs 1.2 crare [ 31 March 2020; Rs 5.67 erare] are under Jien for the credit facilities and letter of guarantees issued by banks

on hehalf of the Grovp.

18 Loans

fLinsecured)

To related pariies

Oither telated parties

{Includes interest receivable of Rs, 6,61 crore |31 March 2020: Rs 2.27 crare]
Yo parties iher il relaied parifes

Securily deposits
- considerad good
- considered doubiful

f.ess: Provision for doubiful depasyt *

Loan W emplayees
[own to others
{Includes imterest receivable of R, 2,539 crore (31 Murch 2020; Ry, 421 croae}

TS 82406
1583 i8.36
.60 0.62
15.65 18.9%
(6.60) {1.62}
15.05 i8.36
1.86 373
959 3042
193.37 £34.97

* The loss allowance on laans hay been computed on the basis of Ind AS 109, Financial Instroments, which requires such allowance fo be made even
for loans considered good an the basis (ial credit visk exists even though i may be very low. The Group's exposurc to credit and currency risk, and

lass aliowances related 1o leans are disclosed in note 56 .




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Noies to the consolidated financial statemenis (Confineed}
as ai 31 AMareh 2021

{Currency © Indian ripecs in crores)

19

20

Other financial assets

{Linsecurid}

To relaied parties

Linhilied receivables

{her receivablcs

To parifes other than related paries
Unhilled receivables

- considered pond

- considered dowbainl

s Proviswon for doahddul amdelicd reccivithies ¥

Uther receivables
{includes interest acerued on receivables of Rs, Nil {31 March 20240: Rs 43 70 crare)

31 Mureh 2021

31 March 2020

33.07 1070

46.86 90
Be2.t1 IREANVE,
842,11 T
$i2:1 LT

31.58 58.09
953,62 T

* The loss allowance on unbilled receivabies has been computed on the basis of Ind A8 109, Financial nstruments, which reguires such allowanee 1o
be made ¢ven Tor unbified receivables considered good an the basis that credit risk exists even thaugh it may be very low. The Group's éxpasure W

eredit and currency risk, and loss allowances related to unbifled receivabies are disclosed in pate 36.

Unlilled receivables

Duzes froms firms or private eompanies in which any director is 2 partacr or a director or membey:

Shapaorsi Pallonji and Company Private Limited

her recrivabies

e fres Grms or private companies is which asy director is a pariace or a $irector or member:

Sashwat Encrpy Private Limited
Sterhing Cenerators Private Limited
Sterling & Wilsen Solar Liniled

Income {ax assels (ned)

Advance tax (el of provision for tax of /s N [31 March 2020 : Rs 000" crarcl)
# Valoe Jess than D01 crore

Bebaw & the moveniea! of pon-corrent and cerrent fax asscl:

Opeaing Balaace

Add : Advance tax paid during the year

Lexs - Refund received during the year

AddfLess: Other Adjustiments

AddA ess izxchange translation diffesence during the year
Closing Balauce

30.23 26.88
.50 .80
2.36 0.5

2094 1422

1493 §4.26
14.93 14.26

143.21 8657

3133 4307

(124.48) .
2.7 12.29
(6.37) 0.28
52.08 14321




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Noices to the consolidated financial statements (Continited)
as it 31 March 2021

(Carrency @ Indian ropees 1 orores)
M Narch 2021 31 March 2020

21 Other current assets

flinsecured)

To related parties

Advances for supply of paods 5.77 4504
Contract Assels 11.77 323

To pardies other than related partics
Advances for supply of goods

- considered gaod [55.45 RY.G35
- comstdered doubtiul 4,68 463
[LSEREL G4 345
Less: Pravision for deabiful advances {4.65) (4,63}
15545 5208
Advance for projects 0.6 553
Contracl Assets
- considered good 58.87 217.82
- zonsidered doubiiu! 25,049 .94
B66h 2277
Less Provision for doubdfi] contrac! asseis * {28.09) (9.94)
58.57 21782
Othir recoverables 017 -
Balance with goveimment auilioritics 23884 23002
Prepaviments 14.28 2502
Advances 10 cmplovess 1298 1296
497 88 632 28

* The lass aliowance on contract assets has been compiied on the hasis of Ind AS 19, Finaneia) Instruments, which requires sueh allowanee 1o he
made even for contract sssets considered good on ihe basis that credit fisk ¢xists even though st may be very low. The Group's exposere o credit and
corrency Tisk. and loss atlowances selaied to conlmetl assets are disclosed i nole 56

Dues from firms or privale companics in which asy director is a partocr or a director or member:

Advaiices for supply of goods

Sterfing Generators Private Limited 577 -




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes 10 the consolidated financial statements (Continned)
ay at 31 March 2021

{Currency @ Indian rupees in crores)

1z

{A)

(8

31 March 2021 3% March 2020
Shavre capital
Authorised
SO.000000031 March 202G ;. 50.000.000) Equily shares of Rs 10 each 50.00 5040
215,060,000 (31 March 2020 : 165 00,000} 0% Compulserity converlible non-cumulative
preference shates of Rs 1,000 each 2,150,010 163000
2.200.00 1.700.40)
Issued, subscribed and fuily paid up:
29,369,333 {31 Murch 2020 29,369.333) Fyuity shaves of Bs 10 cach, fully pad-up 19.37 29.37
IR.G25.660 (31 March 20200 15.025.000) 0% Computsorify convertible non-cumdative proforence shares of Re
i, 00t cach, Tty pand-up 1.802.50 FA02.50
1,831.87 153187
Reconcilintion of shares outstanding af the begining and at the end of vear:
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mamher Amournt Number Amount
Equily shares
Balimce as al the begiing of the year 29,369,333 19.37 16,036,004 14t
Add - lssued during the vear §3.333.353 1333
Batance as of the end of the vear 29,309,333 10,37 20,360 333 3637
0% Compulsurily convertible non-cwmulative preference shares
Balance s at the beginning of the vear® 15,025,000 1,502.50 2,500,000 250.00
Add: Issied dusing (he yea™? INHG060 IO 12,525 () b252 30
Ralance as al the end of the vear 18025006 1.802.50 15,025,000 150230

Rights, preferences and restrictions siinched to equily shares

The Company has a single class of cquity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank cqually with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual
agsels. The equity shares are entitled 10 receive dividend as declared from time to €ime subject w payment of dividend to preference sharcholders. The voting
rights of an equity shareholder on a poll {not on show of hands) are in proporiion (o is share of the paid-up equity capilal of the Company. Voting rights
cannnt be exercised in respect of shares on which any calf or ather sums presemby payable have not been paid,

Faiture 10 pay any amount called up o1 shares may lead o forfeiture of the shares. On winding up of (e Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled 10 receive 1he residual assets of the Company, remaining afler distribution of all preferential amourdts in proportion o the numtber of eguity sharcs
held.

% Compulsorily convertihie won-cumulavive preference shires:

* Competsorily convertible non-comudative preference shares were issued on 17 March 2618 and 10 March 2020 and each share is comvertible mgo four
equity shares of par vatue Rs. {¢ ¢ach afier 36 manths thom the date of issue,

#* Compuisorily conventible non-cmmutative preference shares were issued on (03 October 2020 and {7 lanuary 2021 and cach share is converiibile o five
cquity shares of par value Rs. [0 cach afler 240 months from the date of issue.

Preferenoe sharcs carry a preferentiad right as 10 dividend over equity shaschalders. Wiiere dividend s not declared in respeel of a financial year, the
emtitlement for that financial year lapses. The preference shares are entitled o one vote per share at meefings of the Company on any resolutions of the
Company dircctly affecting their rights. In the evenl of liguidation, the profesence shareholders' wili be entithed fo roecive fiam the proceeds of liguidity event,
oi par 1o the haldess' of cquity shares or securities convertible o cquity shaves. an amount equal o 100% of e amounis invested by it plus any declared bug
unpaid dividends, {o be distributed pro-rata among the holders’ of equily shares and preference shares of the Company on an as convered basis.




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated finuncial statements (Cornfinued)
as af 31 Mareh 2021

(Currency © Indian rapees in crores)

22 Share capital {Continned)

() Shares beld by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries

Equidy shares
Shapooryi Pallongt snd Company Privale Vimited, e Holding conpany
% Compulsariby convertidle non-euaradative preferenee shaves

Shapaory Puliongi aed Company Privaie Linited, the Halding Company

[ P RPIPRRIE | MR Tery % FETTIRIE YISy PR gt o foon B3 0T.30 BPITICET rre
Seaslowat Ungipy Priviie Limited, subsidian of the {ulding Coampany

31 March 2021

Numbcer

14,480,004

2,500,604
2,504,060

Aqoant

1948

480,04
250400

31 March 2020

Number
12,480,000

7300000
2.5

AR

Anoun

19.4%

TR

1 Betails of shares bebd by sharcholders holding more than 8% of the agoregate slires in the Conepany

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Nomber S holding Momber Yo lwibding
Lquity shares
Shapeorii Pallosgi and Company Private Limiled, the Holding company 19,480,000 H6.33%, 14,480,000 643,33%
K hueshed Danala, Direcloy 9,745,293 33.17% 9,745,293 33.17%
1% Compulsorify converlible non-cumutalive preference sharcs
Shapoor) Pallonii and Company Pravate Limited, the Y5080, 000 . .
. " 7,800 G080 bRk
Hoiding Company G1.19% i
Khueshed Daravala, Diecwn Q025,00 3R81% 3025000 A%
Sasheal Energy Privide Eimied, subsidiary of the Holding Company 2,508, 800 B0 2,500,000 HO0L00%%
(E)  Shares reserved Tor isswe under options and conracts / commignents
31 Muarch 202 31 hmreh 2024
Number Anrount Number Amownt
Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference shares 10,800,000 16,06
10,008,000 equay shates of Rs 10 each 10,000,000 10300
Compuisority convertible non-comulative prefercnce shares SO,106.8500 5610
30,100,000 equity shares of Rs 10 cach A0, 100,00 50010
Compulsorily convertiblc non-curmlative preference shares-15,000.400 15,800,600 1504
cquity shares of Rs 10 cach
23 Ofher cquity
Nowter 3 MNack 2020 3 Macch 2020
Capital redemption ieserve {1 50.00 5000
Secnrities prentun account i) 6145 561,45
(reneral risene feit} 13,39 13.39
fepal reserve fiv} 1.1 1.41
Retained Eammgs v} {LB76.85) {546.08)
Foreign currency tranzslation reserve frt} {37.92) (75.83)
Remeasurements of defined benefit lialsiny i} {0596} {1.64)
Toan tewards Fquily {vii) 237 £.00
Other Reserve fix} in 3m
{1,283.70} {294.59)




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the conselidated financial statements (Continued)
as et 31 Merefs 2027
{Currency : Indian rupees i crores)

23 Other equity (Continied)

Purticulars

Capital redemplion reserve
Balanee as af the cad of the year
Securilics premium reseeve
Balanee as at the beginning of the yewr
Add: Additional during vear
Balance as al the end of the year
Goneral roscyve

Bulunee as at the end of the vear
Logsl reserve

Ralaniee as a1 the ¢nd of 1he year
Betained Eaynings

Opendng balance
Wit assetifreserves) avguired as a result of commaon contral business combination)

Restated balance us a1 Uhe begiming of the vear
Less: Oiher movements

Reversal of gain of subsidiary

Add: Addstion during e yeur

Balance as at end of the year

Gthers:

Foreign currency (ranshition reserve

Openitg balance
Mei assersitreserves} acquired as a result of ¢ conirol business combination)

itestaled balance as a1 the beginuing of the vear

Loss: Reversal of gain of subsidian®

Add: Yxchanpe differences in translging the Tnancind statenents of foreigh apetations
Fess: Other movemenls

Transferred to Profil and Loss {Exchaoge Dfferences Realised on sale of Subsidizr)
Balance as at the end of the year

Remeasurcments of defined beneRit linbiliny

Opening balimee

Met assels{reserves) acguired as a resull of common contsol business cosbination)
Resiated balince a8 a the beginning of the yemr

Add: Other campreliensive income aesing from re-neasurement of defined benetit eldigation, net of tax
(Mber adiusiments

Balance as al the end of the yoar

Loan towsrds Lquidy

13alance as o the beginning of the _w:alr"f
Add: Addition during the vear

Less: Peletions during the year**

Less: Reclassilications during the year
Otlier movenents

Balance as at the end of the yvear

31 Mgrch 202

3 March 20240

50,00 50.00
£61.45 7478
. 486.67
361,45 56145
13.39 i3.39
1.8 1.1
{846,08) (305,31}
(0.78)
(846.08) (306,09}
(0.08) (298
(B,02) .
(£,030.67) (337.00)
{1,876.85) (#46.08)
(75.83) {30.73)
B 018
{75.83) (30.55)
{.00) -
3T {4520}
- (0.43}
- (0.45)
(37.9%) {75.83)
.64) (257
£0.02)
(1.64) 2.59)
0,60 0.95
0.08
{0.96) (1.64)
.00} 351.52
237 343
- {335.00)
- 289
. {17.46)
.37 0.00

#f Walue less than (.0] crore




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as et 31 AMarch 2021

(Correney : Indian rupees u crores)

23 Other equity (Continued)

sarlicuiars

Non Controlling Inderest
Opening Balance

Add: Addition during the year (icluding QCH
Less: Avising o aceoun of wnster of husiness
Other movements

Balanee as at the end of the year

Other Reserve
Upenng Balunce
Add: Addition during the v *#

Ralanee as ot the cad of (he yvear

3 March 2021 31 March 2020
404 (15.34)
{3.97) 13.04)
- 218
- 20,24
.07 4.04
341 ;
0.7 301
370 201

{il Capital redemption reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve 15 ereated out of profit avatlable for distribution towards redemption of preference shares, This reserve can be used for the

purpose of issue ol bonus shares.

il Securities premium account

Securnities premium 15 uged 10 record the promium recefved on issue of shaves, 1 s utilised in accordunce witly the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 (the
Aty Moancludes s 1.47 crore [31 March 2024 Rs. 14T crosed that yopwesents the Groug's share in the securities prentiwn sesenve of a joint venawre, §TC

Power Sl
(itij  General reserve
The General veserve is used fom time 10 Ume w0 transter profits from retained camiings dor appropriaticn purposcs.

{iv) Legal Reserve

Legal reserve is created out of net profs of subsidiary companies, in accordance with articie 255 of the Federal Law No & of 1984 and its amendments
retating to Commercial Companies Law of United Arab Emirates and m accordance with the Law No.S of 2602 relating o Commercia) Companics Law of

falar.

In boll: cases, 10% of net income Tor the year is to be vansfezred 10 {egal reseeve, Forther, in accordance with the provisions of the said laws, the subsidiary
companies have resolved (o discontinue such annual transfas since the balance in the reserve account is 30% of fhe share capiial. The neserve is not available

for distrilstion except in circumslances as stipulated in the said laws.

(v} Retained carnings

Retained camings are the profits that she company has cerned il dute, fess any tmsfors o gepered reserve. dividkinds or othey distnbotions paid to

shareholders.
v} Foreiga currency iranslation reserve
These comprise of all exchange differences ansing from translation of financial statemonts of forcign operations.

v} Remeasarements of defined benefit liability

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans comprises actuarial gains and losses on grataity and other overseas defined benefit plan,

i) Loan towards Eqaity

Loan towards equity was an advance piven by Ultimate Holding Company towards cauity shares 10 be issued. The Company has issued and alloned
1,33.33.333 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/, &t a price of Rs.376/-cach (inclusive of Premium of Rs 366/Aper share on 17 Gataber 2019, in licw of and
against the conversion of the agpsesale value of unsecured loans 1aken by Company ffom Promoters and Promoter proup. The issoe price for conversion of'

lpan into equily was detesmined on the basis of valuation seport obiained by the Company.

fiyy  Other Reserve **

Otfier Reserves periains 10 Share of other comprehensive income in joint venture, 10 the extent 1o be reciassified i profit or loss.




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Nates to the conselidated financial statements (Continued)
ax af 31 Maret 2021

(Curreney ¢ Inddian rupees In ¢rores)

31 Mareh 2021 31 Marcly 2020
24  Non-curren{ borrowings
Term Loan from Baaks
[CIC] Dank {refer note | delow) 14.97 44.08
14.97 44.68

Note: |

Jerny Lean from WCICT Bask Limiied of Rs 60 crores 18 repuyable over a period of Owee years carying o moralosium of one year
commencing, from the dite of drawdown. The loan has been fully availed is repayable in § quanerly instaments. The loun carries inferest
basced on one year Marginal Cost of Lending Rate (MCLR) 7.30% plus Spread 3.10% (adjostable annually). Fhe loan is secured by
exciusive charge on commercizl office unit no. 13071-1312, 131k Floor aloag with 33 car parkings located in Universal Majesiic, P L

Lokhande Marg, Chembur, Mombai.

25  Long-term provisions

Provisivn for empleyee benefils
Crratuity
Terminal benedits

20,03 2453
2.60 19.24

29.63 40.77




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Naotes fo the cansolidated financial siatements (Continued)
ax et 31 Meareh 2024

{Cureency ; ladian rupess in crores)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
26 Current borrowings
Secired
{a) Lcans repayable on demand
- Cash credit loan from banks {refer note {a) and (b below) 71.63 H0.79
- Post shipment Laans |refer nate (¢) bedoyw] - 202
(b} Oher Louns
- Working capital lean frons banks refer nate (i) and () below) 1311 13507
- il diseownting {refer note () below) - 10 04
22,7 e 82
Lsacured
{21 Loans from relaled parties
- From Relaied panies |refer note (1), {2, (h}and (i) below] 1, A56.00 1,802 98
- lnter-corporate deposits [refer note (7) below] 54.65 5446
() Loans from other than eelated paies
- Waorking capifal loan from others [refer pote (k) and (1) below] .11 6899
- Bank Overdeafi [refer note {m) below] 275 .09
§,522.20 202722
§.724.99 223604
Pefails of the security and repayment tevms:
a. Cash creditWarking capiial demand loan (acility from Consortivm e, Union Bank of badia {Jead bank),Stale Bank OF Indse, Yes Bank Limiied, Axis

Bank Lannted, DBS Bank India Limited, 1CIC1 Bank Limited, Corporation Bank, JDBI Bank Limited, [DIFC First Bank Limied, RBL Bank Limited and
Indusind Bank Limited having outstanding an balance of Rs [82.28 crore (31 Maech 2020: R 176.72 crore) is secured by a first charge by way of
Iwpothecation of all corrend assels. movable plant and machinery, computers, vehicles and fumiture and fixtures with & carrying vahie of Rs. 68.32 crore
{31 March 2020 s 63,43 crore) as a cellateral securify, erm deposit 0f Rs. 13.5 crore and pledpe of 100% paid up cquity shares held snthe share capital
of Range Consubants Private Limited, & subsidiany of the Company. ranking part passu. Cash credn Tacility from the banks carries inferest rute ranging
fronm 9.50%6 10 12,500 poa., on montdy basis on aclual mpount utilised. snd qe repavable on demand.

b, Cash ereddt fucility from DS Bank Lad. having an antstanding balance of Rs 4.5 crore (31 March 2020 Rs 4 05 croreywas secured by hypothecation of
stocks, boak debts and bills purchased under Jetter of credit. Cash credit facility from the bank carried mterest rate of 11.05% pa. (31 March 202¢:
13.50%) on maonthly basis on actual amownt wtilised, and are repavable on demand.

I Post shipment Loans are availed from DS Bank Ltd having outstanding an balance of Nil (31 March 2020: Rx 202 crore] and are sccured by
hypothecation of stocks, book debts and bitls purchased vader letler of credit. The loans carricd an inferest rate of 3.38% {31 Masch 20201 3 .38%) and arc
repayable on demand Tlus Toan is entively repuid during the vear ended 31 Mareh 2021

d. Bl Disounting facilities were availed from YES B3ank having an outstanding batance of Nil 431 March 2620: Rs 1394 cvore) and were socuved By
Iypethecation of book debls and current assels carmying ap interest ranging $rom Libor plug 125 basis points - 1% paro Libor plus 95 basis points- 3.51%
pa. (31 March 2020: Libor plus 125 basis points « 1% p.a 10 Libor plas 95 basis points- 3.31% p.a). No awstanding amount agamst this facdity as at 3|
Mareh 2021,

e Working capital dennd Joan facility taken lrom PIBS Bunk 14d. having an outstanding, of Rs 13 crore (31 March 2020: Ry 15 crore) was secured by
Iypothecation of stocks, book debts and current assels. The 1otal facility amount comprises several short term leans winch bears interest mie of 10.15% 10
PES0% (31 Murch 202¢: 10.153% 10 11.30%) and ane repayable o demand.

I Unsecured oans and deposits from directors, their relatives and enlities over which directors and their relatives exercise control amounting to Rs 17627
crores {31 March 2020 Rs 12817 croves} carsy an interest sate ranging from 11.50% - 12% p.a and are repayable on demand.

g Loan from parent company Shapoor)i Pationji & Co Pvt Lad amounting (0 Rs 277.64 crores (3] March 20204: Rs 371,87 croves) carry an imerest rawe of
11.5% and are repayvable on demand,




Sterling and Wilsan Privafe Limited

Notes to the consslidated financial statements (Continteed)
as et 31 Mareh 2024

{Currency : Indian rapees i crores)

"M

27

31 Mareh 200 31 Whaich 2020

foans Fram Relaled parties include Ry 397 .56 crores (31 March 2020 B2 565,33 crores) as pavalle fo Sterling and Wikson Solar Limited with Interest
expinse of Ry, 73.70 crores (31 March 2026 Rs 164,96 crores) and average interest rate ol 14.58%, Nil (31 March 2020: Rs 10735 crares) pavable o
Sterling wd Wilson Wimiree Pyt Led. weth interest expense of Mid (31 harch 2026 379 erares), rade of imerest ol 12 %o and  Rs Nit {31 March 2020; Rs
19.95 crores) payable {0 Sterting & Wilson Energy Systems Pvt Lid with inderest expense of Rs 2.49 crores {3 March 2020; Bs 0.07 crores) and average
interest rate of 15.50%,

Lo takeo by overseas subsidiary Grom a related pacly having an otlstanding balance af Rs 54947 crore (31 March 2020 Rs 602 .66 crore)canied iteresl
rate of 8% per pa wntil 30 September 2020 and with effect from 1 Oclober 2020011 was amended o borowing eost o related party plus 400bps (2024
T.5% - 8% par) The foan was unsecured and payvable on demand wmil 30 September 20200 The Baard of Direciors of the refated pany had received a
reguest rom ihe Promoeters of the Uiumate Paent Conyrany toextend the repaynsent timeline, 1 Bea ol obtuning seourity 10 cover the anmsuest sulstanding
and also bevy penal imerest. Accordingby, the Board of Directors of the vekaed pany bad taken a decision 1o extend the repavmont iaedines il September
2021 and levy addibonal poval wterest. Purther, sulsequent 10 the veporting date, the Groups Bas provided security by assizament 0f gortam trade decount
revervabies. Subscguent w i reporiing die, anamoent of s 30880 crore has Deen padd 1awards thie Joan o @ ekt party.

Inter corporme deposits having an outstanding balance of Rs 47,99 crores {31 March 2020: Ry 32.45 crores) carries an ierest mate ranging Tom §1.50%
ta 12% p.a. and are repayable on demand.

During she year 20:19.20, the Company had issued Unsecured Rated Unlisted Non-Cotwertibie Debemntures of Rs 860,36 crore (nclisding mterest of Rs
.36 crare) Tor a period of 91 days at interest rale of 11% pa

Warking capifal demand loan facility taken by an overseas subisidiary fiom a thisd party having an balance amown of Bs 876 {31 March 2020: Rs 867
crove) is unsccured camying an mierest rate of 3% (20207 3% p 2 and is repavable on demand.

Bank overdrafl Daving an outstanding balance of Rs 2.75 (31 March 2020 Rs 1.0¢ crore) in case of an overseas subsidiary is unseoured and attract
commercial inlerest rales.

31 March 202} 31 March 2020

Trade payables

- Total owdslanding dues of micro caterprises and small eslerprises (Refer note 49) 115.47 it4.39
= Total masianding ducs of creditors other tha micre escrpeises and smalt eonerprises® §,278.39 128035
Acceptances®® 240.64 21857

13634.52 1613.26

¥ Centain vendor balances under Trade Payables are subject o balance confinnations and reconcilistions, if any. The Company has also received balance
confirmation replics from certaim vendors and are in the process of reconciling those balances with that as per books of accounts. The management is of the
view that the impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss wil) not be material.

% Acceplances include arrangements where operational suppliers of goods and services gre infitiafly naid by banks while fhe Company continues 10
recognise (he labidity G131 settlement with the banks which are normally wathin a period of 120 days amounting to Rs. 240 66 crere {31 March 2020 Rs
218.52 crore).

As at 31 March 2021, trade payables includes retention of 1&s ¥ 174 crare |31 March 2020 : Rs 11.68 crove] relating (o canstruction comiracts in progress.




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements (Continnied}
as of 34 Merch 2021

{Cuorrency - Indan rupecs i crores)

28  iher financial Yiabilities

Current naturitics of long-Lern debl

- lerm loans (reler note 24)

Imerest gecrued and due;

- W micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 493
Emplayee benefis payable

Dther pavakles

T velused parties

- Iterest geeried @ ned due o direcior

Cithey pavables

Share of foss of equaly aceawnted ivestee

29 Other current fiabitities

To related pareies

Advances fron: cuslomers

Bitling in advance of work completed
To otfer than refated parties
Advances from customers

Billing in advance of work compleled
Advance o emplayees

CHher payables®

Stataiory ducs payable

- TS payable

- Provident fund pavable

- Profession tax payvable

- Employess State Insurance payvable
- Value added tax payabde

- (057 payable

# Vatue Jess than G010 crore

3 March 2021

31 March 203D

28.71 6303
6.62 2.99
86,42 48.21
907 1383
- (.04
36,44 378G
37.46 1193
23774 27687
0024 112.91
£.59 P18
54463 72894
107.49 4717
336 34
(.08 -
21.9% 1889
662 378
.10 0.24
4,13 0.08
547 544
2.24 041
781717 932 67




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes (o the consolidated financial statemenis (Caontinyed)
asal 3 March 2021

{Currency  Indian rupees in crares)

30

31

3t March 2028 31 Mareh 2020
Shert-term provisions
Provision for einployee henefits
Girinuity 1.08 0.86
Compensated absences 35158 ELES
Qther provisions
Présvision {or higuidated danages or price discount 16.00 1357
Prasvision for foresecable Joss 152 1281

59.78 6575

Fereseentide foss:

B case of constructan comracts, swhen ol s probable than total contraet costs wilb exeecd wial coniract revente, the expected lass (Totesecabic kasg)
recogiised sg an expense inmeditely i the consolidated siatement of profi and foss.

Liguidated damages or Price discounls

Liguidated dumages or Price discaunts are contiactual sbligalions affecting the contract revenue in case of the construclion comtracts arisimng as a sesull of
penaitics arising from delays caused in the completion of a contract. For cantricts delayed bevand the stipulated contract completion periads, management
has estimasied the Jiabality that could arise on these condracts.

Frovision for product warvaity

The warranty provision represeats management's best estimaie of the Group's Lability under wanantics gramted on products, based on griar experience and
industey avetages,

Frovision §o: As i Additions Elfect of Asat
A 2020 {Iteversal )y reinstatement ol 31 March 2021
Foreiga Currency
Laquidated damages / price discounts 13.57 243 - - 16.80
14.30 2.55 3.28 . 13.57
Foresceable loss 3183 552 {1102} 089 .82
5.7 .23 2.7} .07 1283
Provision for loss fncurred by joint vemtune - - - - .
202 - - (.2 -
Flrovions N smntiers aee i ifadivs
Inceme tax liabililies {nef)
Frovision for cutent tax (nel of advance tax of Rs 53 3% cvone §31 Maech 2020: Re 65 98 crore}y 7218 344
fincludes fringe benefits sax and weald iux)
7?3’8&: 3.44
Helow is ithe movement of current tax Habilive:
Opening Balance 344 2.63
Add ; Current 1ax expense for the year 0,79 -
|Lss . Advance tax - (1.44)
Odher Adjustments 3058 2.25

Closing, Balance o _ 128 344




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the conselidated {inancial statemenis (Continued)
Jor the Year ended 31 March 2021

{Currency ; Indian rupees in crores)

3

w
T

2

Revenue from operations

Sale ol serviees

Incame from works contracts

Revenae from operation and maintenanee services
Sale of products

Sale of traded goods

Other operating income

Sale of scrap

Export incentives

Renta] inconw

Other income

Interest incomie under the effective interest method on:
- deposits with banks

- income Lax refund

~ from others

~ loan 1o related partics

- {nan 1o emiplovees

- security deposits

- retention payable / retention receivable

ihvidend mcome

Guaranice commussion income

Gain an absorplion of losses in joint ventures Orefer note 51)
Supplier balances written back

Foreign exchange gain {nel)

Imsurance claim received

Profit on sale of Property, Plamt & Lguipments (met)
Gain on sale of subsidiary (net)

Wrile back of provision for bad and doubtf{u] debts (net)
Gain on forward cover cancellation

Wrile back of provision ne longer required

Gain on sale of invesiments {nef)

Provision for Liguidated dansages utilised(net)

Gain on modification of lease

Business support services

Miscellaneons income

Write back of provision {or foresceable boss (net)
Expaort incentives / duly drawback

Yeur ended

31 Narch 2621

Year ended

31 March 2020

2,393.00 348383
25390 325.43
15327 43.00

1.35 -
.32 .80
0.34 (.09
2606718 1833.23
3.05 4.75

IR -
6.48 3.27
S84 7147
a.i1 6.26

- 0.27
Aoy .67

- 0.

- 2.61

- 42.82

10,45 10,22

- 12695
8.08 Q.78
0.78 0.0%

- 221
1.26 17.58
603 (.03
1.52 1.92
4.03 -

- 0.73
034 -
625 220

14.08 15.81
5.47 -
.61 0.00

72.43 240.71




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes 1o the consolidated financiad statements (Contirrned)

Jor the Year ended 31 March 2021

{Correney : Indian rupees in crores)

34

36

37

Cost of construction materials, stores and spare parts

Inventory of maderials @t the beginning of the vear

Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Inventory of materials at the end of the year

Purchase of traded goods

Cost of traded goods purchased during the year

Change in inventory of stock-in-frade

tnventory of stock-in-irade at the beginning of the year
Less: Inventory of stock-in-trade al the end of the veay

[nerease in inventory

Direct praoject costs

Communication expenses

Stores and spare parts constmed
Commission expenses

Legal and professional fees
Printing und stationery expenses
Insurance costs

Repairs and mainienance - others
Helling and markeling expenses
Traveling and comvevance expenses
Rent (relee note 4.1)

Rates and taxes

Elcctricity, power and flel
Donation

Bank charges

Provision for foresceable losses (nel)
Oller project overheads

Provision for Liguidated damages
SHe expenses

Transpori charges

Construction materials, stares and spare parts
Miscellancous expenses

Empleyee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribufion 10 provideni fund and other funds
Stafl welfare expenses

Sub-contractor expenses

-

b

N
Y

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 dMarch 2020

28.75 60.08
1,656,19 2.283.00
18.97 28.75
1,665,97 2.314.33
0,23 17.95
.23 17.95
39.35 24,80
§9.95 39.35
(20.66} (14.53)
1.12 1.28
5.56 9.98
2.30 13.51
2112 37.78
0.85 1.28
15.580 14.69
14.17 13.91
6.02 0.15
11.40 15.42
22.56 15.65
444 4.19
2,87 4.90
0.01 0.04
3113 17.23
017 .52
457 1.56
7.06 3.5
0.10 0.31
0.09 0.38
0.53 16.26
59.98 96.75
205.85 27530
262.30 35827
17.49 23.99
11.50 15.74
291,29 398.00
535,96 663.21
1,633.10 1,336.51




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Confinned)
For the Year ended 31 March 2021

{Currency - Indian rapees in croves)

38  Employee benefits expense

Salaries. wages and bonas

Contribution 1o provideni fund and other (unds
Gratuity and terminal benels {refer nole 44)
Compensated absences

Staff welfare expenses

39 Figance cosls

interest expense
« on secured feans
- on unsecured foans
- an dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- an incone 1ax
- on fease linbilities
- on amount due 10 related parties
~ on others
- on retastion receivable
- on working capital foan
- on cash credif Tacility
~ on bill discounting
Letter of Credit - Guarantee Charges
Other borrowing costs

40  Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and cquipment
Depreciation on Right-of-use assefs
Amortisation of inlangible assels

Yoar ended

31 Mareh 202)

Year ended

31 March 2020

209,76 289.60
10.06 16,42
514 5.44
8.84 7.80
B.50 17.40
248,24 336.78
34.59 40.72
§30.72 176.82
3.78 2.84
.61 0.08
1.38 3.36
61.49 61,16
15.35 340
1.58 1.28
1.73 4.85
434 0.49

- 0.13
2.35 12,08
936 16.99
262.28 325.26
2409 21.58
14.66 19.41
2.16 3.19
40.85 44.15




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Confinued)
Sfor the Year ended 31 Mareh 2027

{Currency : Iadian rupees in crores)

41

Other expenscs

Communication expenses

Stores and spare parts consumed
Commission expenses

Lepal and professional fees

Printing and sistionery expenses
Insuraree costs

Repairs and malstenzner othen

Selling and marketing expenses

Traveling und conveyunce expenses

Rent trefer note 4.1)

Rates and taxes

Electricity, power and fuel

Payment to anditors

Foreign exchange toss (nei}

Donntion

Property. plunt and cquipment written off
Bank charges

Bad debis wrilten off

Provision for bad and doubtful debts, leans and advances (nei)
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit & loss a/e - net change in fair value
Provision for forseeable loss

Management support fees

Consullancy fees

Recraitment expensc

Land Development charges

Business developmont expense

Asset Wristen off’

Loss on disposal of investments

Corporate social responsibilily expenses (refer nofe 435)
Interest acerued on receivables writien off
Writedown of contract assets
Misceliancous expenses

# Yalue less than .01 crore

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year cirded
31 March 2020

306 ER D
145 0.78
0.66 0.17
29.57 3280
0.71 1.96
4.31 .13
7.28 10.08
[ X 3w
.54 36.83
3.56 10.24
1.66 2.42
2.3 357
.51 0.4%
4194 -
0.01 4.37
- 0.86
20.66 10.69
19.67 2745
155.32 53.04
218 5.09
- 1.03
9.24 13.54
.88 4756
4.83 0.08
- 0.0t
8.20 9,05
.60 -
237 -
- 1.35
133.22 -
18.40 -
14.43 14.16
476.25 37,75




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Jow the year ended 31 March 2021

{Curreney: Indian rapees in crores)

42

A)

B}

Disclosure under Ind AS {15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group undertakes Engineering, Procurement and Construction business. The ongoing coniracts with customers are for
Industrial Engineering Procurement and Construction (EPC). The type of work in these contracts involve construclion,
engincering, designing, supply of materials, developnient of system, instaliaion, projecl management, opcrations and
mainicnance cie.

Dsaggreagtion of revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from comracis with customers is disagoregsted by primanry geographical area and the fiming of revenue recogmition,
Psaggreaated revenue with the Group’ s repontabic peopraphical scgments s given in the note 47.

The following scis owl the disaggregaiion of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers based on timing of
satisfaction of perfonmance obligasion:

For the vear For the vear

Timing of satisfaction of performance obligativns ended ended

31 March 2421 3t March 2026
Ad a Point in time
Sales revenue 1527 43.00
Comtracl revenue 3154 278.64
Over time
Contract revismle 2.361.45 32052
Service revenus 253.9G 32343

The following table pravides information abowut receivables, contract asseis and contract labilities from the contracts with

customers:
Nate For the vear For the year
Iarficulars cnded ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Trade reccivables 15 2,634.46 3,398.35
Unbilled revenue - Other financial assels 19 87518 1,142 48
Contract assels - Olher cunrent asseis 2t 7634 21407

Condract habilities - Advances from customer 29 TI8.86 12
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)

B)

Disclosure under Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Confinied)

Reconciliation of contract assets and Habilities

Particulars

Contracl assers®

Contact a5l ot Gic beghnadng of e yoar

Add: Addivion during, the vear

Less: Revenue reeagnised during fie vear

Adked Bxehange translation difference during the year
Less: Proviston for doubtful contract assels

{.ess: Writedlown of comracl asscis

Less: Other movements

Contracd asscts as at end of the year

Cotract liabifities®*
Advance lrem caslomers
Cantract liabilitics al the beginming of the vear

Add: Acymisitions purstunt W the sclieme of arrangemant

Add: Addition dusing the year

1.ess: Applied during the year

Add: Exchange translation difference during the year
Contract liabilitics as af ead of the year

For the vear
caded
31 Mareh 2021

For the vear
cnded
31 March 2020

22107 31T
862.38 86881
964.93) (932.84)
(3.22) 1803
(28.09) (9.94)
(£8.20) -
1.33 20.01)
70.34 221407
94,12 177547
HE .
197.21 344,11
35413 (120775
(6.23) (178
718.86 RE

#The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's rights o consideration Tor performance obligation satisfied but not hilled
af $he reporting date. The contract assels are sransferred to receivables when the rights became unconditional.

**The condract liabilities primarily 1elales to the advances {rom customer towards on-gatning EPC projects. Revenue s
recognised from e coniraet Hability as and when such performance obligations are satistied.

Recanciliation of vevenue as per Ind AS 115

Particulars

Incone from works coniracis
Adiustment on gecount of:
Provision for liguidated damages
Tatat

Revenue from operation and imainlenance services
Adfustment on acoaunt of:

Adiustment during the year

Total

For the year

o thie year

ended ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2024
2.395.43 348459
(2.43) 0.73
2,393.H 348532
25390 32543
253.%0 32543
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E)

Disclosure under Ind AS 115, Revenune from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

P*erformance obligation

The Group undertakes Engineering, Procurement and Construction business, The ongoing contracts with customers are Tor
Incdustrial Engineering Procurcment and Construelion (BPC) The tlype of work in shese contracts involve construction,
engineering, designing, supply of materials, development of system. installation. project management, operations and
mainienancs ee,

The Grovp evaluaies wheiher cach contract consists of a single performance obligation or weltiple perfornunce ahligations.
Contracts wihere the Group provides a signiftcamt integration service 10 (he customer by combining all the goods and services
are concluded to have o single peyformance obligations. Contracts wigh no significant integration service, and where the
customer can benelid from each unit on s owa. wre coneloded 1o have mulliple performance obligations. In such cases
considaration s attocated 10 cach performance obligation, based on standalone seiling prices. Where the Group enters into
multiple comracts with the same custemer., the Group evaluates whether the contract is o be combined or not by evaluating
faciors such as commercial objective of the contract, consideration negetiated with the customer and whether the individual

The Group reeognises coniracl revenue over fime as the performance creates of enhances an asset controlled by the
customer. For such arrangements revenue is recognised using cost based mput methods. Revenue 1 recognised with réspect
o the stage of completion, which is assessed with reference W0 the proportion of contract costs incurred Tor the work
performed at the balance sheet date relative 1o 1he estimated 1otat contract cosls.

Any costs incurred (hat do not contribute to satisiving performance obligations are excluded from the Group's input methods
of revenue recoghition a5 the amounts are not reflective of our transigsring control of the system 1o the customer. Significant
Fudgment is required 1o evaluate assumptions related @ the amount of nel contract revenues, inclading the fmpact of any
performance incentives, liquidated damages. and ofher forms of variabic consideranon.

if estimated incremental costs on any contract, are greater than the net contract vevenues. (he CGroup recognizes the entire
cstimated loss in the peried the loss becomes known. Variations in comract work, claims, incentive payments are included in
contract revenue 10 the extent that may have been agreed with the cusiomer and are capable of being reliably measured.

The Group recognises revenue from Operations and Maintenance services using the time-clapsed measure of pragress i.e
input methed on a straight line basis.
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Disclosure under Ind AS 115, Revenue from Cantracts with Custemers (Contintied)

Remaining performance oblizations

The Growp applies the practical cexpedient in paragraph §21 of Ind AS 113 and docs not disciose information aboui
remaining performance obligation (Except {for one foreign subsidiaryy where the Group has s right fo consideration from
customer in an amount that corresponds directly with value 10 e cuswmmer of the Groug's performance compleled o date.
Accordimgly, (he Group recognises revenne by an amount 1o which the Group bas a vipht (o invoice,

The following mble mchades vevenue expecied to be recogrized i the fsture relited o perfonmmee obligations thi

unsatisiied {or partially satisfied) of onc foreipn subsiciar:

For the year ended 33 March 2021
Particutars

LERC business
Tedal

Yor the vear caded 31 March 2020

Particulars

EPC business
Total

HILY

1 year 2 year
144.19
144.16 -
1 vear 2 year
48,71 -
48.71 -




Sterting and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidaied financial statements (Continned)
for the vear ended 37 Mavel 202!

[Curreney. hndian s i erores)

43

44

Contingent fiabiliticy and commitments

Conlingent liabilitics 31 Mareh 2021 31 AMarch 2020

Gan) Chaias apainst dhe Groags ot ackaowdedyed as debis

L) Domnnds sized by hieome lay antositicos L[RHE [AXH]

(i Demands ragsed by Sales tax authonines T6.59 57.90

{i3) Dermands vaised by Senvice tas authorities w17 108,73

() Bank goarantecs owsianding 124.33 37751

() Lener of credi 077 -

(d) Corporale guaranioes cuslanding 116,75 93372
54,69 LA

Capital commitaenis 30 Musreh WZ0 3 March 2020

Estnuited amount of coneets emiining o be exeentad on capilal sccount and tol provided Tor iner of abvanee of K 152

3.3 erares P31 March 2020 Rs 357 Crowes])

Tnvestmient in Sterling, and Wilson Cogen F 200 - 039

L5 370

Eotiors of aredil and bapk puarantees issocd By banks on behall of Qe Group aee secuved by snargin ey deposits (Mote 173 T addition, the leters of oredii amd bank
wprarantees gre secured bw a comporate gusrames from the Parent Comyuany and assignment of reeeivables for tle amounts guearameed

The group has suspended cnginecring, procurcment and consimcton sgrecment eered into with ane of the cusionicr on aecount of dispate conceming e work and
[ayiment coempated as per the apreement. As a resull the customer has clanoed hgquidation damages under agreemenl ateng with additiona! unspecified damages of
approximately Ks 2.90 Crore, Fhwe Group is comenly under setdement discussions with the customer and since the dispuge 1% in carly stage. the amowm af claim, if any
canol be dewernuned with setlicient 1ediahil i

Iyt sedditaon, dhe Growp is subject o depat proceedings and clams, which have ansen i the ordinsty course af busipess. The Group has seviewed ald ifs peadmg Bligations
ad proccedings and has adequately provided for where provisions ane required and disclosed as contingent Lability, where applicable in é1s consolidmed fiuancial
slatemems. Flie Group's mmmgemosl does ned reasomably expect hat these lepal notices, when ultimately conchided aod detemianed, wilf ave 3 naterial and adverse
cffect an Group's results of operations or Tinaneial condition.

Employec Bencefifs

DafTired caniribistion plair:

Contributias o provident fuad and otlier fued aperegating to Rs 3353 ciowe {31 Maich 2020: Bz 40.42 crore} is recognised as an expense and included in Personucl
Cosls”

Befined bencfir plan aind fong-term ermpliovee besefits:

Ciencedl duscrplion

Gratuity (Delined benefif ptan)

In accordance with indian Taw, e Company and s subsidiaries i Tndia bas a defincd benefi gratuily plan. Bvery eniployee i India whe has completed Dve years or
mare of service gets a graluity on death or resigugtion or vetirement at §5 days salary {last deawn basic salary} for cach completied year of service subjeet 0 maximu of
s 0.2 crore.

Change (n the presed value of the defined benefft ebligation

Terminal beaefits (Defined benefit plan)

In respect of the overscas subsidiaries, during (e year, the Groug has made pravision of Rs (112 croze {31 March 20240 Rs 0.39 croig] for ensployees’ weriinal benefits
an the basis prescribed ander the labour kaws of the vespective countries i which 1he overseas subsidiaries operales and the same is determined based on anthmetic
calculation. Accardingly, the Group has net disclesed information related to defined benefils for averscas subsidiarics in the table below.

Compensated absences (Skori-tere empdoyee bencfiis)

Short ke lgave wages are payable @ all cligible emplovees & the rde of daily basic salary for sach day of secumulited leave on death or o resignation oF upon

retirermeat
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T Reconciliation of the present value of defined frenefit obligation

Pabaee alile begimiing of e year

Bepelits paid

Current service cost

Imerest cost

Liabiby transfiored in/ acqutsitions

Liability (ransferred out

Actuanial (gaing) losses recogaized in mler comprehensive income
- changes i Dncial assumpiions

- expriznce adjsnnents

Linbitties assamed £ {sented)

Fakanee 3t the end o7 e year

It Amount recoguised ia the cansilidaticed statemeni of profitand loss under cmplovee benefis exjiense

Cureent service cost
Mot inderest cost

HT  Remeasarement recagnised in other comprohensive income
Acluanial panss / losses on obbigation for the year

IV Muaturity profile of defived henefif obligation
Within next 12 monihs
Belween 1 and S years
Above 5 years

AY Actunrin] assemplions:

Discount rale
Salmy escakation
Emploves tamover

Ponality taliles

Weighted average duration of the projecied bonetit obligation

VI Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on 1o by possible ¢k

periad, white hotding all ether assinpiions constang.

[Defined Benefit Obligation - Diseount rate + 100 basis points
Defmed Benefit Oblipasion - Discowm rade - HO0 basis poims
Drefined Benefit Chligation - Salary cscalation rate 4 100 basis puins
Defined Benefil Gbligation - Salmy escalaion rate - 100 basis points
Detined Benefit Obligation - Employes tumover + 100 basis paints
Defined Benehi Obligation - Employee tumover - 304 basis points

praject unit credid method at the end of e reporting period has been applied.

Gratuity

38 March 2021

31 March 20020

22,34 2148
(5.39) (1.58)
347 337
154 1.67
.08 0.38
©.21) £0.24)
©.113 (A
{71y 545
0.05 (A0}
21,41 7139
347 337
154 167
541 5.05
©.82) (1.30)
@.82) (1.39}
LO& “.86
338 401
58.24 62.57
G0, 6. 8654

£%- 1% SUI%

Herviee =5:12% -
14%

Indian asvored

fives mortalidy

(2006-65}

15 years

of fhc respoctive assumprinns oocurting at fhe end of e reportiag

Defined Benefit Plan

31 March 2031 3 Mavch 20720
Q2367 (2557}

28.63 30.96

24,85 2700

(21,85) (2369}

578 558
6.7 6.96)

The shove sensilivily analvas have been calewlated to show the ssvverent jo delined benefif oblipation in isolation and asswming theoe are no other changes iy
markel conditions at the repaning dae, In practice, pencratly it does not occwr, When we change onc variable, it affeels o others. In colewlating the sensiivity,

Service = 5 0 12% -
14%

Indian usswred lives

ntortality

(2006608

b5 yearsi

Campensated absences

Compernsated absences Tor eaployee bonefts of Rs 8 %4 crore [31 March 20000 Rs 7 86 crone] expecied o be paid i oxchange for the services recogmised as an expensy
during the year.
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A,

BEvisclosure prusuant ta section [B6 of the Comgpanies Act, 2003

The detaily af Toans, praranfees ond fivestinens ander Section 186 of the Coupeairios Aok, 2013 read with the Canpenifes (Aeetings of Board aod ifs Poers)

Rules, 2004 are ay filfows:

Protails of ivestinents made by the Counpany as on 31 March 2021

Tovestneents in cquity shares

Natne of the endity

Asant 1 April 2020

Investmend during the year

Redeemed/Bold

CHlier Adjustiments

Asat 31 March

daring the year 2021
rongin Intervicws Private Limited 191 - - - 19.91
S - - f2.00) fuu
Crapptan Greaves Consunes Flectrical Limites ELH . - - L6
f1 13 £1
OO Poswer & Judustris! Solufion Bimawedd [ELE - - - {04}
LK) - LIRE
Ruchi Sova Liniledd 04k - - - [ERTL)
00 - - - {1142
Tata Consdtaney Servives Limted (323 - - H17 .44}
[Ca) - - fifXixn IRk
Woestem India Sugar & Chemical tndustries Lin WA - - {L1KYy -
fhind - - lxrit -
Mid East ladis Linticd (X111} - - [LELE]] -
X7 - - (.00} .
Maomnati Leather Liniled {400 - - (LA -
ALy - - T X]
Olesktin Plants and Equipment’s Limited {00 - - FUAL:H
Thit) . . {EL00
SV Limited (Sauth India Yiscose Limited) .4 - - {01 -
ik . - .01} -
Sudlsiii Hosiery Limited [1X:] - . {0.01} -
fhiH - XIS
Arshiva Limited e - 0.1¢ - -
fhim 40 - {171y e
* prrevioies yeoe Jmibas ire do fradivs
= gerrees aneftenge virknes dine doas rfnen Mo £ 600
Investment in preferenee shaves
Name of the catity Asat ] Aprd 2020 Jovestment made during Redeemed during Other As al 3T March
the year the vear adfustments e
Srerling Generatars Private Limited 5354 - - {3.09) 50.47
I3 RY - {275 5334
Envestment i debentiures
Mame of the cntily Asat 1 Apri 2020 Investment made during  Redecned duriny Oiher Ag at 31 Manch
the year e vear wdjustatenis 2021
Westen Indiz Sugar & Chencal Indusiries .08 - - - .t
Limited fLi - - [/Ri
¥ VTN $eai peinelory are dn fradics
Investment in mutual fusd units
Namqc of the endity Asat U Aprik 2828 Iovestmend made $uring Redeemed during Other Asat 21 March
the yeat the year adjustments 2027
Usien Loag Bond Growdh Fund .28 - - 002 0.3
.27 - - 0.0 1025
Relianee Liquid Fund - Treasury Plan - F02 02 -
Cirowah Option 2 i o2

* PCvinns P pnarhers g 1 Mol
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45 Disclosure pursvatd so section 186 of the Compaaies Act, 203 {continued)

B Tretails of foans given by the Company are as Tollows:

Mame of the entity Asat 1 April 2020 Loans given Repaid during the Forcign exchanage As at
during the year year {including daring the year A1 March 2021
fureign exchange
ad justmenty
Sterling & Wilson Solar F200 (refer note ] L3148 - i 5.4 {(LGH) 37.42
hidow) - B ] - RR'AS s34
Frawsiel Uihnies Leed, UK irefer none 2 below] .41 - - .67 .08
A3 {42 L
RN v PR e TH falies
Node B2 Sterling & Wilson Solar FACO
Purpese of wtilization of loan piven w 1he ctitics Working Cappital
Loai repaynsent fevs Repmyable o demand
Rate of Interest Bia-11. 2% na
Note 2: Transiel CHilities L, DK
TPurpese af unlization of Joan given o the entities Working Capilal
Loan repayinenl s Repayable on demand
Rate ol Inferest B3 pa
C, Details of guarantecs givea by the Company arc as folfows:
LUaranlecs gives Cruaranioes
during the vear expirved daring the
fincluding year {ncleding Asal
Mo of the entity Furpose As al O April 2020 adjusiment on adfustment on )
31 March 2027
account of actount of
exchange exchange
difference) difference)
ISTC Power Sand,
Hank Guaramec Working Capital JB.L8 k) XL 1818
pEX 447 0,44 TR

< proviowy yoar anmthery are i ftalics
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Corporate Guarantecs

The Graup has constituned a Corparate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commiftes ag per Section 135 and schedude Y11 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Acn) read with the

Companies {Corporae Sociud Responsilility Policy) Rales 2014,

The funds are ntifised during the year on the achvitfes which are specificd in Schedule VIEof the Act. The utilisation is done by way of direct conribution linvigds

warious activities.

The delails set below are for the amound speit by the parent comyany. Noae of the ndian subsidiaries qualify for CSR contnibution, hised on teeshold prescribed in (he

Agt.

Farticutars
A Giross amaont requred 1o be spent by te Company durdng the year
B Amoundt spend doving the vear ended 31 March 2021

Tn eash

31 March 2011

Vel to be paid
in cash

Taf

Parlicuiurs
A (s smnaant verpuited to be sgent by the Compatne during the vear

B Aot spent during fhe vear ended 33 March 20240

In eash

3 Auerch 2024

Yol to be pald
Et casty

Tatak

158

Activities on wikeh expenses miade are as below:
1 Funds far Covid -19 - supphy of procerics and hypienc kits 10 100 needy beneficiaey familics
2 Tonation to schoals under i-care
3 Donation to schools under {-care
4 Contrbution for mentlly disabled persons
5 Fiucmional material 10 studemss of «ifla paishad schools of Patedar
fr Pomilion & Viclory Arts Faundalion conducting dance chasses (o uaderprivileged kids
7 Comrilmitom towards avwaceness of personat hypmeine and mendal health session conducted fin
§ Contribution for technical education to disabled seldicrs
9 Contribution towards school empaserma progeanine
10 Coniribution toward Maharasliza Flood Retief Fund throuph M Reliel Fund
11 Camribution 1owards widow welfare progranime.
12 Contribwtion lor conmumity donking waicr play
13 Others

Q.01
an2
a.02
0.03
Q.03
6.4
.08
.05
4910
g%
1.}
.04
0.00*

i.5%

e L thonn 0.0 cvires
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A

48

Scgnient reporting

i¥asis for segmeniation

‘The Grong is engaged in the business of Mechanical, Eleciricals and Plumbing and Fire-figlting, [n accardance with Ind AS {68 “Operating Scements™, Hie Group has
detenmined its bassiness seaments as “Mecunicat, Flectricals and Plumbing and Fire-fiphting” The Group’s Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the
internal masagenent reparts prepaced based on an aggprepation of finaeial infarmation for Meclhanical, Eleciricals and Plumbing and Fire-lighting. As the Group's
business sclivity s within & sinple business seqment vie,  Mechanical, Fediricals and Planding and Fire-fighting”, e consolidated Nnanciut statement aze refleclive
of e intrmation required by Ind AS 105 “Operating Scpments”,

Geopraphical infoermation
The geographic information analyses (he Group's revenues and mt-caree assets by the Companys conniry of damicile and other countries. 1t preseming geapraplic
inforiation, scgnnent revenue bas been Based on the selbing location in relation 16 sales o customers and sepisend assels s hased on geopraphical lacation ol assels,

it} Revense from exierngd customers

Partieriarg 31 March 2210 31 sl 2074
India 181993 21964
Cruside Indis 847.25 | 373,59

LO6TEH 385313

I} Not-eurrent assets {other than financial instruments and dederred tax assets)

Particulars 31 March 221 31 March 2020
Todia 24545 350,46
Cunside Tdia 2348 4308

)} Inforination ahous majur customess

Rovenue Trom one custanier of {lie Growp is Rs NI crore {31 March 2020: Rs Kil) which #s mase than 10% of the Group's 1otul revenuc.

Edarnings per share

Particulars 3 Macch 2621 31 March 2420
Busie earmings per shire

Memerator:

{loss) aller wax anribamable 1o equity sharcholders (103L67) (536:99]
Denoninator:

Weighted averape number of egquity shaves cutstanding during the yvear

Nomber of equity shares at the beghming of the vear 29,369,333 14 036,000
I=flect of fresh issue of shares - 6063,927
Weighted average sumber of eguity shines outstanding daning the vear (based on date of issue of {A) 29,369,333 23009927
shares)

LEfvect of compulsory convertible preforence shames® {3 66,152,192 13,0149, 716
Adjusted weighied average number of eguity shiares cutstanding duning the year (hased an date of 1a) (13 B5,551,525 35,119,653
ssstie of shares md compudsary convenible preference shares) '

Basiv nod dikuied earnings per shave {Hs) {107 87y {152,94)
!Facc wakue per share T4y 14306

#Adjusted weiphted average number of equity shares inchude cffect of comipulsory convertible preference shares that will be conrverted by #ts holder into fowr/five cquity
shianes of par value Rs 10 cach, (Refer note 22 ). Accordingly, the compulsory convertible preferonce shares have been considered for basic EPS computation Dased on
land A% 33 puidance.
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Bues o micre aml smalk sappliers

Undier the Micro, Small and Medivn Enterprises Development Act, 2306, {b45MER) which came io force from 2 October 2006, certain disclosures are reguived fo be
made 1elating 10 Micto, Smalf and Mediun enlenprises, On the Dasts of the information and records available with the management, there are auistanding dues 1w 1he

Miceo and Small emterprizes as defined in the Micre, Small and Meditm Enterprises Developmest Acl, 06 given below,

Pariicelars

The amounts remaining wnpaid 1 micrs and salt suppliers as af the end of the vwear

- Peincipal frofer note 27)

- Inderest (refer noke 38)

The amount of inteest pakd by the buyver a5 por the Mcre Small and dedium Bmerphses Dasvelapmem Acl, 2006

(MBASIED Act, 2000) MEMIZ
e wepes of (e payicins musde w micar s simal] soppbers bevond die spyrssed day donag cacly aeoouitiog yvoar

Tl arount of intesest due and payable for the period of dilay i making paverest owliich lave been paid ban bevand the
sppointesd day during the year] I withons adding e interest speeificd ander MSMED A, 20406

Ao of inderest secrued and sosamiag wysnd abthe ond of he aceounling year

Fle amoantt of further meerest remainig, due aud payvalde oven in ibe suceceding years, il such dawe when the neress

e MEMIETY Act, 2006,

ducs as above arc actnalfy paid to ihe small enterprise for the purposs of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under

31 March 2021

115,47
062

0,62

3 March 2020

i14.3%9
249

Ay
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Related Party disclosures
Related party and their relationships

Category of related parly

Ty Holding company:

23 Subsidinries, direcl and indivect bolding

3) FeHow subsidizries

4) Joinl Venteres

81 Associales

Shapoarfi Palloryi and Company Privan: Limited

Sterling and Wilson Inlernational F2E

Sterhing and Wilson Cogen Solutions AG

Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Sotutions Private Limiged {w.e R Aagust 03, 20203
Sterling @nd Wilson Middie East Wil

Storhing and Wilson Nigeria FZ12 (w.odl April 30, 2020)

Sterling & Wilson Nigeria 11d.

Steritng £ Wilsen Cogeir Solution L. (ligndated w.et. June 19, 2019}

fimpre Cogsulunts Pais Fid.

Slcethig and Wisoi Secaniy Sysicie Pvil Ld

Earch-SWRL IV (we £ Movambar 1, 20

GUO Py 1ad fwel Tune {3 219y

Sterbing and Wilsom Middle Fast Electeomechamcal L1, P

Sterking and Wikson Fower Systems Inc.

Sterhing and Wilson HES UK Lid.

Sterting and Wilson-BNIHIN Consorlium

Sterling and Wilsen Middle East Slectromechanical {Babrain) WLIL

Sterling and Wilson Middle Fast Sanitation, Electrical, Cealing & Conditioning Contracting 1140
Kuwait

Sterling and Wilson Cogen Solutions 1.1LC

Sterling and Wilson Saudi Arabiz 1.

Alvons Infrastructure Limited

Esterlina Solar Engincer Privaie Limsited

Ewrcka Varbes Limited

Evangetos Ventures Private Limiled

Forbes Eavira Solations Lamiged

Forbes Faciliy Services Privale Linmed

Forvol buernational Service Limined

Global inlta FACO

Sashwat Energy Private Limited

Shapoorji Accos Conslraction Privie Limited
Shapoaorji Palionji Inlrasiructure Capital company
Shapeorji Palionji 1anka Private Limited
Shapoori Palionji Mid Fas L1C

Shapooryi Palionji Nigena FEE

Shapearii Pallonji Niperia Limited

SP Fabricators Privaic Limited

Sterling and Wilson Tmiemational Solar 15700
Sierling and Wilson Solar Limited

Sterhing and Wilson-Waaree Private Enmited (upto March 3§, 2020)
Sterling Generators Private Limied (JTormerdy Swerting and Wilsan Powergen Private Limited
{wee . July 02, 332y

Shapoorji Patlonji Qatar W1, Qatar

{300 Sokar

Sterfing & Wilson Australia

CoSwli5r]
PEALC. 5 a5 di Barzany Massimo
STC Power S.rd

Sterling and Wilson Power Solations LLC




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

ay at 31 March 2021

] Related Party disclosieres femsinfnued)
S0.1 Related party and their relationships (contiinred)

Catepory of related party

6) Key Management Personael

Ty Relaiives of ey Management Personnel

8) Entities over which key managerial person or
their relatives exercise control

9) Entikies over which Holding Company exercise
significant inRuenee

darme Y Danevada, Direcuw
Khurshed ¥, Daruvida, Direclor
Pallon Shapoar Mistry, inectar
Ravi Ananthakrishngn, Direcior
Parameshwar Megde, CEO

K. & Harharan, Company Secretary

Mrs Kainas Kharshied Daravala
Ma, Dol Khasshad Duravale
Nl dohan Rinershed Daruvata
My Farhad Hoink Uinwalla

Delsys tnfoteeh Private Limited,

Swrking and Wilsen Luergy Systems Privaie Limited
Sterting and Wilson Services Private Limited
Swrhng Viking Pawer Private Limited

Trausie! Thilitees Limited, UK

Trasted Uhihities Private Linsited

Larsen & Toubro Limited — Shapoorji Pallonii and Company Ltd. Joint Ventne
§. 3. Corporatian Brivate Limiwed
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Nofes to the consodidated financial statements (Continucd)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

{Cuorreacy: Indian rupees in crores)

51 Interesfin joint ventures

[astercst in joint veatayes
1 STC Pawer Sl
2 Co, Siell B
3 PLCSAS D Barzani Massino

Carrying amaint

3 Maceh 2011

31 March 2620

14.72 P58
0.33 {155
15,65 [

P
——

List of foint ventures

Sr Name of he ewmiiy
No

1 ST Power Sl
2 Co St Sl
3 OPTE A s Maissimo

Plitee of basiness

Fuld, kaly
Forli, kaly
Milan

Yo ownersidp inferest

3F March 2021
&%
’5%4
30%

3E March 26240
3%
5%
%

Relatiunship

Joini Ventuse
Joint Venture

Joint Vewrure

Aceouniing
et

Erjuiey Method
Equity Mellind
Fouiry Method

The principal activities of the above joint vensiures inclade business developmen, instaflation and marketing of technological products, system
and equipment as welt a5 the supply of sendces with panticular reference fo the encrgy ndostry. Additionally, their activities include she
developrent of civil and industrial works, the coordination of the orgamizational activitics Tor feasibibiny studies, sales promotion and technical
consultancy related o the aforcaentioned works and seiting up of att relased activiiics.

in 2017, the Group acquired ownership inferest in three joint ventures registered in lealy. Acquisition of the joint ventures was accounted for using
the acquisition method of accounting. As a resalt of purchase price allocation exercise, e Group has identified intangible assets from cusiomer
coniracts which is being amortised over the expected time of completion of confracts.

Particulars

Increase in value of net assets a8 a resull of

Mnal purchase price allocation:

- intangible assets

l.ess : Amortisation during the year 2017
Amortisation during the year 2018
Amortisation during the year 2019
Amortisation during the year 2020
Amnrtisation during the year 2021

Translation Adjusiment

Intangible assets (net of amortisation)

ST Power Sl

42 83
(12.78)
(21.03)

(8.62)

{0,123

0.12)

0.3%
0.55

Co, StcH Sorl

PT.CSASH)
Baveanti Massinsg

Toal

47.53
1727
(21.03)
$.62)
{0.33)
@.12)
639
0.55




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Confinued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

{Corrency: Indian rupees in crores)

51

(1)

Interest in joint ventures (Continued)
List of joint venfures (Continied)

Under the share purchase agreements {Uthe agrecment”) originally ontercd into between tie Group and the erstwhile magority sharchalders (certain
crsiwhile sharcholders are also 1he current joint venture pariners) for acguisition of the joinl ventures, STC Power Sei and Co Steli Sl The
erstwhile inajority shaicholders had vepresented that (he joing vestares would aclicve certain amount of target net worth as of 31 Deeember 2007,
In the event ihat aciuad net worth as of 31 December 20017 is lower tian the target net wordh as represented in the sgreement, the ersiwhile majority
shareholders shad pay the short Bl cither i cash or by way of transfer of shares (e value of which is equivalent of the shortill} in the joint
venlures af combination of both, The actual net worth as of 31 December 2017 for both the joimg vendures was Tower than the targe! net worth as
per the agrecment. Ag a result o setflemend agreemant was enfered into on 17 February 2020 between the Group and the erstwhile majority

ed o setle (e shortfill both In cash and fransfor of shares (the vatue of which iz

sharcholders, whereby the erstwhile ungoriyy sharcholdon

cuttivalent of e short it} s follows:

Joinl Ventuare Agreed Shortlall  Seliled by cash Transfer of shares in licw of cash
Co. Steli Sri 7.58 - 758
STC Power Sl 3523 1136 23.67
Total 42,81 11.56 3125

The agreed shostfall which was received in cash and Wrouph transfir of shaves has been recopnized under other jncome as "Gain on
mdemnificalion by joi ventres panners” (Nole 33 and 303 The additional shares received based on (he above sefloment agreement is
acootmted as s1ep acquisition of the joint ventures, Tiwe effective date of 1the acquisition is 31 March 202{ and as that date the fair valie of net
Jiabiiiues is equal o it carrymg value.

2020 ST Pawer Sart Co. Stell S.r. Fotal
Mot liabifities acquired (86.56) (€.72} (87.28)
Shaee of net Habilities {7.79) (0.22) {8.01}
Purchase constderation (transfer of shares in Bou of cash) 24499 .01 33.40
Ciondwil] 3278 8.23 41.01




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Noies to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the vear ended 37 March 2021

{Carrency: Indian ripees i crores)

51 Interest in joint ventures (Continued}

{by  Summarised financiat information for jeint ventures

S Parficulars 5TC Power Sl Co, Sreld Sardl. T.CSAS T
No Barzanti Mussinn
o Non-current assets (net off gosdwilk) a4.76 042 8.00
66,13 2. 7x [N
1 Cureend nssets 183.12 9770 47
i3 PR R
HE Non-varrent liahitisios (Ho 1Ty JAEN T} XL
[P fI20E G £).011
1V Cervent Habililies {246,221y {95.27) {4404}
F345.0% {35,585 IR
Vo ONet assels {1451 {1.3%) o7
{86.36) ftl 72} Fif
VE Geoup's share of ned assols {37.41) (1.9 0.33
FERe] {624 033
Vil infangible  assets®  (not of  amwrtisation  amd 55 FLEELGH L
tesnslation adjostiment)
Ay fl.iwr LR
VI Franstation adjusien i 1M (023 [{iZi]
182 [t ik 03
IX Carrviag umonn of interest in joing ventures LX) $4.72 033
.4 iR /%y

Previows year nisibers ave in ftalics
* hitangible assets nepresent fair value of " Costomer condracts” identified as a sesult of final purchase price afiocation and is being amortised over
the expected time completion of the contracts.

Reconciliation of carrying amounis of Geoup's iiderest in the joinl vendures i these consolidated financial siatcnents i as foHows:

ST pariiculars 31 March 2021
MNa
SEC Power Srih Co, Sl 5.1, PICSASD
Burramii Masstmwo
¢ Proportion of Group's ownerslip imerest i Joim {37.41) {L19) 0.33
Ventuse
i Goodwil an sivestien i joint v 312 206 -
M Imsngibie assets fnet of snwartisation) ¢.55 {048y -
1% Translation Adjustinenl 4.94 (.25 (02,011)
Yo Amaunls comdbmed 10 eguity - #.10 -
VI Caeryiug smount 6.00 14,72 3,33

Z{ MUMBAL




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Nafes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

o the vear ended 31 March 2021

{Curreney: Indian rapees in groees)

51 Intevest in foint veniures (Continned)

by Summarised financial information for joint ventures (Contimiced)

5¢ particatars 3t March 2020
Mo
10 Pawer Nel. o, Stell Sk PACSASIN
Barzandi Muassimo
| Proportivs of Capap’s ownership interest in Joint (3520 (62 .33
Venture
1 Ciondwill on svvesinent 1 joml ventues 3278 8.3 [ERL}
WP I;tsipide Asgels {nel of smorsaton s 131} LERL]
1y Franshasion adpsuneont P52 AR [44.6H0)
B Amounts oot rinated 10 cquity [ERES] 8317 (LX)
v Cintsing snnun {008 13 84 e
":,: ' Particidars H March 2020
STC Power Sl Cao, Steld S L PTOSASD
Barcanti Massin
1 Reverme Jus. 14 9536 LLE~
1} Prafit / (loss) farthe year {6360} {1.61) .47
i Other cemtprehensive come {net of income tzx) 11,412 (.04 Q.08
IV Total camprebensive incarme {63.58) (1.65) {0.47)
Vo Growp's share of prodit / (fossh {61} (.78) (.21
VI Gronp's share of pther camprelionsive moame 441 002) 0.08
VI Group share of tolal comprchensive income #00) (086 {0.21)
Lr Parliculars 31 March 2020
Mo
STC Power Sk Co. S51el] Sk PTOSASY
Bareami Massinso!
| Kevenue 153 34 7125 0895
I Predin £ (loss) for the: year (#0882 (1.39} G.34
113 Oiher comprehensive income {net of income 1ax) 276 (0.02) .00
WV Totsd centprehensive incone {78.06) (1403 Q.34
Vo (g’ share of profit f (oss) {2643) {540 6.7
VI Group's shave of ohier comprehensive iheonie 7.4 (000 000
WH o Group share of tofal comprelieisive fncome {24.64) {101 317

Tite Group has 1ot recognised tosses pentaining 10 5T Power SRE amounting ko INR $3.69 crore {31 March 224 - 10,63 vrore)




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Jor the vear ended 31 Mareh 2021

{Currency

s Indlian mupices in croresy

52 Interest in Associates

Stoling and Wilsan Power Solutions LLE

Carrying amaunnt
3 March 202§ 31 March 2020
137.46) {1195}

-37.46 -21.95

s

r

Ne

Nane al the crdisy

Stevting wed Wilson Pawar Selupron, L0

Yo ownership ineerest

3E Mavch 2021 31 March 2020
405 A0t

Retationship

Acconeting
e thod

Figeiny

y Bethad

(2)  Sumpsarised financidd information For associates

-

1arficudirs
Nup-vurrent assess (net off goodwill)
Carrent asseds

Nan-curreat Habitities

P Cuerent liabilitics

Nl asseds
Group's share of net asseis

Carvying amouni of nlerest in associntes

Sterling and Witson Puiwer Solutians 1L1£C
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

ae2 240

EERL 8913
.00 {003}
(52.56) (11517
(38.66) £23.04)
(38.66) {23.04)
(37.46) €21.9%)

Sterting and Widson Pewer Solutions 14K

:: Particubrs 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
f Proponion of Gravpy's ownershipy inferest in associntes {38.66) {2364}
11 Tramslation Adjsiment 1.X 1.469
131 Canying amount (37.46) (21 .95
:r Particulars Sterling and Wilsen Power Solutions L1.C
Lt}
33 Murch 201) 33 March 20246
1 Revenue 7003 2391
11 Profic (ossd for the vear {15.51) {10.77)
HI Other comgeehensive imcome (rel of ingone 1a%) - -
OV Totat compreliensive income (15.51) {10.77}
YV Group's share of prafit £ {loss) (15.51) {10.77)
W1 Crougs share of oty comgrebionsive income LIXLI] k¢ ]
Vil Grouwp shure of 1otal comprehensive incoms

(15.51) {10.37)

Reconcihiation of carrying amownts of Group's inlerest in the associates in these consolidated financial slatemends s as Tollows:




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Nales 1o the conselidated linancial statemienis (Continited)

e the o endied 30 Merch 2021

{Currziey ¢ ladimn supees in orores)

51 Mon-controlling interests (NCI

Set ot below 15 sumiminised Nnaneind staentents fir esch sebsidiany thal has non-conrelling imterests. The mnounts disclosed for coch subsidiary ave before imec-

comprany ¢linitons

A Mureh 2021 Secrkinge undl Wibun Srevling & Wikam seerfing and GO Py, Furich
Seewrity Syavems Private  Niporia Limived Wilkon Middle Lad,
Limined [T W
Palivain
Tercentagte nf nan-ceniroing inrerests 0% AR SLO0%Y 24.00%: S1.00%
HOMICIITORN FEA0LE 06 354 - 3.18 053
{Tunenl assgis 1,24 643 G058 14.97 2111
Rusirsoutiis Eduiate - {1L.24) - {1.258] -
Cureeint Sl (2.67) {08603 (2367 3101} £21.03)
Hel nnaels (.47 112 (2362} [ESN .00
Foniely sttrilseabla fo NOT L0y .55 {1205y 13.41) L{R S
{ i lidaiang adpizonis - f4.74 (2
Wed asscts allvileenahbe o NOT 58 e lizrneak dinaacizb (lLhay A [LEATR] 1341} st
*Fadeee Jevs Wy 21025 crvere
M Muarch 2023 Sterling xnd Wilsun Surling & Wilson Seerdtop anl OO Ty, Earich
Sreurity Sxstems Private Miperta Limioed Wilkoa Middte fad,
EAmieed East Wl
Baliruin
Porvonitagy of non-conteaffig dnterests 0.10% 29.00%, AR 24.00% S1.00%
Profid afler neae tax (U.15) €0.36) {016 {598} 155
Citer comprelicnsive income - 035 (0.02) {2048} -
Tetal comipchensive incoe (0.15) (LU L% {7.18) 1.55
PraliliToss ) atéribatable ta WO (.00 [ER 3] .08 (1.24} 479
Comsalidnticn sdjosuneats - - - -
Total prafil siicibunadilc in NC'T (LRI (3.1 1{1L.08) {1.24) LRl
e compredionsivg inceme 1 MCE . 017 {{LO1} (0L4%) -
Consolwion adinsimonts - - {Lt - -
Tatal Grher compreliens ive income ateisiohicde KOt - iLE7 {L01} [0.4%) -
Tetat corprch i auiritneabic o MO (.60 £L.95) {0.0% (1.72) 6,79
*lrmhue Fesa tNews ) vrore
31 Maweek 2t Ltevling and Wilsnn Sovhag & Wikson Bterding and SWE Power GO0 Piy. Ld, Eaaicd
Seeurity Syems Privane  Nigeria Limiced Wikson Middle Limited
Limited Exst W.L.L,
Badrain
Percentnpe of son-cantsoling inlvrests QO10% 44.00%, S 4.00%% 24,0095 S1.00%
Mar=cumend asels 0,14 748 - 347 014
Cinineint yestts D00 23442 o - £15 147
Ron-curtend akilings - (036} - (534} -
ot libsilitics (3.41) {26600 (24.14) - {1732} {14 87y
Mt ansets (1.62) 044 {25492 - {703 tas
Awecty strilmiuble 4o NCE {6.06) 029 ¢ a1l - {3069 G0
Lonsabudabion sdfustocits - 1747 022 - - -
Wt asacie allsitueable ta NELas per lidaled fi il [0, 0438 {17068 {1198 - {1.6%) 1Rk
31 Maseh 2620 Serling and Wikon Seorting & Wilson Seading and SWE Pewer GO0 Py, fad, Envich
Securily Sxstems Private Ninerin Edmiled Wideon Middle Limited
Ldmilgd Enst Wk L.,
Babrain
Percentape uf nunt-conieelling intraeae 0% 44.00% S1.00% Q.80% 24 80% 55.00%
Prof alicy income Lax {014 324 (408 (LM =747 404
Ceher catiprelonsne ineane - [{LwA 045 - 039 -
Fodal compeclicnsive incanie @) 302 (4.403) QL {7.27) 0.04
Trofith Lossh atiribulubily to NCL {0.00) 1.5¢ (2.08) .00 (1.84) 042
Total geafit nairibuetabie 10 NCF {0.00) 1.59 {2.08) 0.00 {1.84) 042
bt eomprehensive income auribilsble to 5| Q.00 (0.E1} 0.3 0.00 049 Q.an
Consnfidatioat adpustawe s - 0y (083 0,00 - 0,50
Tetud ey comechensive income dttributabde te NCI 0,00 [((NE {091 .00 409 0.0n
Tored comprelensive incow snrilutatic s NCT {0.1:0) 148 {Z.85) [TX0]] {1.7%) afz

Flighere Jrus frenn 60 erore
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financiat statements (Confinned)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Cwrreney: Indian Ruapees i crores}

55

Addilional information, as required under Schedule 1 o the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as

Subsidiaries, Associate and Joint Ventures

Name ol she Compainy

Pares

Sterieng and Widsen % ivite Bt

Sihsidiaries

Feralister

R ComsetRanes PMrvade Lamsied

Sterling and Wikson Seciily Svtems
Paivate 1amiled

EnrrheSWRL IV (wee £ November 1
30ED)

Sterbrmz ant Wilson CooGen Solotiots
Privige Linuiod

Forvign

Sterting anl Wilson Nigena Limited

{5teclong amd Wison huernational FIE

[Consatlaled)

Sterling and Wilsan Middle East W EL

Gro Py Lmited tweef fune 10 2(H9)

Stething and Welson Co-Gen Soluwions
Al

Sierting and Wilien Migeria F2E

Mon ocomrelling  dmteress o all
stlssiciarics

Tonal Elmunations on C fidation

Tatal

Mot Assets, b, (0fal #5548 minns

totad lialilities

As %ol
cunsalidiated net

HESE01S

ARy
[iakide

{0.21%0)
[
029%
(00%
¢14.76%)

[{ERERY]

G.20%
nodss
(27.9K8%:}
4, i

(402556}

01 E}

(2.59%)

(0Gry

0.02%
062%%

G.34%
i
060

000
(192.19%:)
(58 E0%%)

111%
103.3%%

Adllgng

204523

LOET G

£
49
{Eb]
{EONH
i.60
403
{64.45)
(32743

112
44

{153,403

5076
(226.62)

1130.3n

{1421y

(703

E2
2
1840
G408

404
{1,053 56}
(177 S04

R4K.19
B23T 30

Shues in profic or bosy

As %ol
vonsubidited
profit pe foss

(B.88%)

FE
9.05%
(139
{0.15%:}
[LLEVHES

430%

[T
10.01)
52082%
44 SRY
S 1%

020

0.50%

1.43%

0.01%

Q0%

(0.91%)
i
.00

L4y

0.0
{00y

90%
03%

Amunat

339,14
£330 B

L))
[EX¢x)

{0.£5)

{311
155

044
{45,300

314

{6363
124

(4544}

(241.0M)
(93.91)

1139.46)

{5.08)

(767

{8.10)
a1y

113
3.65)

(231

(235
1287

(1,430.67)
1536 09)

Share in other com prebensive

incine

As % of
vansolidated
uilser
cumprehensive
incame

0.0z
(042}

A

%
0.8{%%
L
A%
80P
034

047

0.50%
0.52%,
(R.10%)
14.24)
237
i

(5 14%)

Won

40
{0 66%%)

10.00%)
[

{hBI%)

a2
3%
H118%

6%
HI1%%

Amawmit

032
0y

£3.48
R
6.35

€Ay
(208

HLOY
3.07

(6.42)
2.09)

LER

000
063
(0.00)
{3 ]

(0.38)

24.68
45 83)

3.
(41.22)

Share in dntal com preliensive

mcome
As ¥ ol Lodad
compreliensive
weune

344

A2 BRTy

{0090

(15
8.402%
%
{0.16%)
(@00
3.20%

S2i19

001
(LR
RhI2%
A
2.10%

(RS
137

1.20%

a1

kL]

a%s
0ty
G40

LKLY

-2.258%
5. %

%
4.00%

Amoun

1338.47)
1330 58}

0.HE

42

(.15}

(0313
155

bga
131.72¥

{37 iy

(6.04}

RS

(547,44

2B
{90.24)

1345 B3
(118

[7.27%;

{03

(347

(3109
12.43
{32 96)

(99L.45)
151821
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Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes lo the consobidated financial statenments fConfinned}
e ihe yote eitched 30 Mevelt 2024

(Carrency - ladizo mupees @ crores)

86 Financial instramenis = Fair vabues aml risk ianagement (Coatimeed)
() Financial risk management {Cumtirenicd)
i, Credit risk

Credit sk 35 the fisk of Geancinl loss o the Gronp i a costoner or counderpariy to a fancial instreement fils 1 neset s contractal obdipstions, anid aises principalh from te
Cirotap's reveivahles Trom cnstonsers and mvestmcnts, The eanying smonnds of Tinaneial agsees teprosead the mpcnnun credie expastie

Teade and othee receivaldes {including contract asseds}

The Group's exposure 1o credit nisk i nNuepced imapdy by e indivichaat elaracienistics of cach ¢ - The de hics of the cust . inludisg the defanly sk ol e
sty amd comndey inowhich e cuslomer gperates, atso las an influenee on credil sk assessinent. Credit risk is mamaged Grrongh credit approvals, establishing credit Tinigs and
coptinuousty mandtoring the creditwerthiness ol customers (0 which the Group grants eredin tenns in U noemal course of busiess,

Torad tracke receivable as on 3E Marcdl 2020 &5 Be 203440 crones (3 March 2020: 85 339835 croves), unbilled veceivabiles as on 31 March 2021 55 Rs 875,18 ovores (31 Matcly
0624 Ry £ 15248 croves ) and conteaol aisets as i 31 Macir 2020 B 05 5857 crores (30 March 2020, Bs 217 82 crores)

The CGroug docs et bave luglier comesatmaon of ercda risks to 0 smgle customer.

A per simpdified approach, te Group eabkes provizior of expoctod oredit Tosscs o trasde reveivables, umiiBled veceivables and comraen mssvis v nndigate e sk of delagl
payotents and makes appropniate provisien i cach reponing date wherever autstindeng is for longer poiad amd dnvelves hipher nisk,

The musverent in e aliownnes Tor inpainment in resperet of frade and other rescivibles during the vesr was as follows;

P articulars Trade receivabies Liobilled veccivalios Laany Caniract asseds Totzl
Balanec as af | Apnk 151y Gt 3R 1341 £ 60 . Kb AL
AdE. b £ {yuadan} I d {nckf 41 &K . 154 A EERINS
Peon isions Greversed Hacth - {141 - 341
RBalunce as a1 31 March 2020 10880 - 1.94 4 116G
Add: Impratamem bews recoymeed Ineik paXit] 128 FHER T44.HT
Provision s ersed Hneds (20850) (M50
Yigndalion r.en L] #140] [REe
Hatance as 2t M Ma 127.8% 420 8.0 _ 156,24

The ageing {or the wade receivaliles, ualniled recervables and contracn ngsets ihan were el ingoied ate meationed below:

Particulars

Asat 31 March 1021 A% ut 31 March

024
Weither past due nor impaired 970.42 717
O 1o 3 mohs 622,51 230203
3 to &omonths 181,36 22810
6 mouths 10 1 year 33235 30785
mone thae | year 1.552.34 185675
Tutal 3,579.98 4,761.90

Cash amd cash equivalents
The Group held cash and o

hoeyueivademis and ot bank badanees with oredio worthy baoks and Snaneisl nstiutions of Rs 85.2 crere and Rs 14477 crore as g0 31 Macch 2021

sud 31 Marcl 2000 respectiveby, The credit worthiness of dwe such bank and § il instingions is evaluated iy

Other Dunk Inbances

on an ongoing basis and i co 1a fro good.

L

Tiie Growp leld ollier bank balances of Re 53,72 crove and Rs 68,47 crove as a1 31 March 2021 and 31 Murch 2020 respeetively with Bank with good credif rating.

Investinent in mvtuxk Bnds

Bivestiments prinvarily inchade Snvestment in wnits of mowal fiads, These motial fends and conmerpartics have low credst rigk.

Guaraniees
The Pareot Compainy®s palicy

the puranices (0 certain luoks on behalf of ity subsidiaries and joint ventures in sespect of credin facilities availed by he subsidiarics. The C

s 1o provide the Buancial guarnices onky for 815 substdinries aud jomi veniures. As ar 33 March 2021 and 31 Maech 2000, the Company bas issued

his whven pustantecs o the

customers of sulsidiares in respect of mabilisstion advance veceived by the subsidiarics and for she perfonnance ol the cantret obtigation.

Security deposts givea to lessors

The Group has given sccusity deposit to lossors for premises leased by the Group as al 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, The Growp
tesgors where the ansounl of security deposil is misterial,

Lasans, investiicats in group conypaaics

the credil i of such

‘Fhe Groug lias given unseoured oans 1ot joint ventares, The Urouy docs 1001 perceive any oredit nsk pertaiming 0 loans provided 10 jois vemures or the investiment in such jaim
venlures,




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Nofes to the consalidated financial statements (Contitiied)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Caerency © Indian Tupecs in crares)

56

&)

Firancial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continited}
Finaneial risle managemont {Caitiineed)
Ligaidiey visk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligutions as they become due, The Group mansges ity liquidity risk by
cnsuring, as far as possible, that it will abways have sulficient liquidity 10 meet its Habitities when dug, under both normal and stressed conditions. without
incurring unaceepabie losses of risk 1o the Group's reputation.

The Groap hus obtained Tund and non-fund based working capital lines from varions banks. Furthennore, the Group has oblained the long-lerm Joang
from the hanks. The Group also constandly monitors funding options available in the debt and capiial markets with 3 view 10 maintaining Tinancial
fesibility The mamapement momilor's e net Bguidily position of 1the Group thraneh rolling forccasts on the hasis of expecied cash Now

As ot 31 Marcl 202, the Groap baed term Joams of Rs 1497 crore, working capital demand inan of Ks F3R8 crove, current materiies of Jong-term delx
of R2 29071 crore, cash credit toan of Rs 71 03 crore, loan from related portes of Rs 14356 croie, bank averdartt of Rs 2,73 crore melading cash and
cash equivalents of Rs 857 crore and other hank balances of Rs 53.73 crore.

Az a1 31 March 2020, the Group had serm loang of R 44 .68 erore, working capilal densand joan ol Rs 304 .06 crore, carremt maturities of fong-ierm det
of Rs 63.03 crore, cash credit loan of Rs 60.79 crore, koun {rom rekuied parties of Rs 1802 .95 ciore, bank overdraft of Rs 1.0% crore meluding, cash and
cash equivalents of Rs 145.6 crore and other bank balances of s 68.47 crore

Exposure to ligiddity risk

The table beiow analyses the Group's financiaf liahslilies inie sefevani maturily groupings based an ther confractual matueities for non derivative Tomancial

{iabilitics. Furiher, the table represents contractual discounted cash low relating 10 non derivative financisl liabilities:

Lontracias] cash Nows
37 March 1621 Carrying amonnt Toint 1 yonr or egs T-2 wears 18 yonrs More than §
N
Now-derbvative Minanciat Nabifivies
Term loans {inchading sterest cost} 44.68 4468 pLided | 14,97 - -
Cashr credet Toams T3 hanis 11.63 TEAS T1.63 - - -
Wonkuny capetal dunand Joan §139.88 1349.86 139.8% - - -
Tost shipasent Loarns - - - .
Bill discowing - - -
Vi from vekated panics 1. 4540.00 1,456,010 E 456,00 - - -
Teade pavalies 164114 1.641.14 1641 54 - - -
hiskeg Lty e depRasins 8465 S4.65 S4.465 - - -
Loase haliitsies 6.30 6.30 153 495 1.4 0.75
Bank overdrafi 275 275 275 - - -
Otler enarren Gingmceak Habikities 221.41 12541 2441 - " -
Cwstrncest oush Maws
31 March 2024 Carryig awomnt 1etal 1 yesvor brts 12 wewrs 2-5 voars More than 5
hEe
Non~derivarive financial inbillties
Term Toans §ineludimg e eas) 11254 127 00 £1.32 St il | 4407
Cash credil foans fhom banks (i) [l i) G379 - - -
Waorking cayital desinand loan 30904 304.06 304,06 - - -
Post shipment Laans 202 2 2oz - - B
Bil} discounting 1¢1.94 1094 10,94 - - -
Loan from related paetics 1B0298 1.802.98 1,802 9% - - -
Trade puryabbes 16326 1,603.26 161126 - - -
Lease hialibies 2254 8 0R fI.05 392 224 147
Tnler-corporate doposits sS40 5416 5416
Bank overdralt 1.0 | oy - -
Other current Tinancial labilites 202412 it Xl 200402 - -




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year pnded 31 March 2021

{Cureency : Indian rupees in crores)

56

{c)

{8)

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Contined)

Financial risk mansgemend (Cainffueied)

furked risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of fiture camings. fair vatues or (Lure eash flows that may result from adverse ehanges in market sales and prices (sueh s
infercest rales, foreipn cwmency exchange rates) or in the price of market isk-sensitive inslirmnents as a resull of such adverse changes in markel raes and
prices. Markel risk 15 antribudable 10 alt market risk-sensitive financdal instruments, all foreign currency receivables and puyables and all shori lerm and long:
tenn debn, The Group is exposed to market risk primarily related 1o foreign exehanze rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of its investmenis.
Fhus, the Group's exposure 1o market gisk is a function of investing and bosrowing activities and revenue generating and oparating activities in Toreign

CUETENGICS,

Crirvency Risk

Fhe Group is exposed 1o curreney 1isk on aecount of its operating, and Tinancing actevities. The funcioml curmency of the Paremt Company i3 Indien Rupee,

Expastre 10 curreney risk

The cosrency profile af financial assets and inanciat liabidities as a1 37 Mareh 2027 and 31 March 2020 ave as below:

Amaunts in INR ¢rores (Local currency) 31 March 2021

[ B 1] EUR GHP AED INR Oihers®
Finnncial assets
Trade and otler receivables 467,12 A7 22032 (&0 - 21572
Cash and Cash Equivalems 0.65 {455 602 (FCH] - 32
Exposure to forcign currency asseds 467.77 12,22 12134 {6.630) - 217.04
Financiat liabilitics
Trade and other payables 3713 547 .90 33.98 1,957,684 4£.94
Expasare to fareigo curvency liabililics 37.23 547 850 398 1.957.04 4.94
Net Exposure 43054 6.78 213.44 (31,98} {1,957.64) 21231
Amounts in Forcign cuereacy 31 Macch 2011

LS FUR GRI AEBD INR Othees™
Financial asscis
Trade and ather receivables 6,37 G54 223 1004 - 1168
Cash and Cash Fquivalents 0.91 16.31 0.00 0.4 - 4.07
Exposure 1o foreign currency assels 634 16.45 2.2 .06 - 10.75;
Financiaf Habilities
Trade and other payables ;B3] 4,00 089 1.78 1,955.63 {436}
Exposore (o forcign cavvency Habilitics 0.51 .06 0.89 170 1.933.63 (4.36)
Ned Expasure A7 16.3% 212 {1.70) (i,953.00) 15.11

*others theiude AU, SAR, MYR




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Comtinned)
Jor the vear ended 38 March 2021

(Currency | Indian rupees in crores)

56
iii

{#}

Financial insirumends — Fair values and visk management (Cominned)

Market visk {Contimued)

Cuorreney Risk (Contimred)

Amounds in INR crove {Local currency)

31 March 2028

Usn EUR GRP AED INR Otliers®
Financiak assels
Trade and other receivables 48630 16,20 15,64 - - 694
Cash and Cash Eguivalents 3240 (103} (3,043 0043 - thikt
Expasure 10 foreigh curreney asseds 489 00 b2 195 64 0.0 - £.45
Financial liabilities
Short tera bareowings - - 10.94 024 - -
Frade pavables and other payable 2986 §32 7.02 35.92 1,404,935 (.38
Exposure 1o forcign currency liabilities 2580 832 1796 36.1) 1, 40{.65 (.38
Net Exposure 435.64 7.89 177.68 {36.11y  {1,400.95) 6.57
Amounts in Foreign currency 31 March 2020

USh EUR GBY AED INR Qliers®
Financial assels
‘Frude and ather recervables 223 073 340 - - Lis
Cash and Cash Equivalents 218 004 0.00 G300 - GO0
Exposure o forcign corrency assets 441 073 3.44 0.00 - 013
Financiat liabilitics
Shart 1erm borowings - - 0.12 19.68 - -
Trade payables and other payable §.81 0.0 (.08 13.06 o878 106
Exposure to forcion currency liabilities BRI R[] 01e 3274 &R.78 0.06
Net Exposare (4 40) .63 33} {32.74} {6K.78) (.09

Sothers inchede CHE AU, RARMYR

Sensitivity analysis

A 5% srengthenmg £ weakening of the respective foreign currencics witl vespect 1o Indian rupees would result in increase ar decrease in profit or loss as
shown In able below, This analysis assumes that all other variables. in particular imerest rates, remain constang and ignores amy sinpact of forecsst sajes and

purchases. The following asalysis has been warked out based on {he exposures as of the dale of siatements of financial position.

Effect in INR Croves

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Teeadit e lass {(Pee-Tax bopact)

Profit erduss (Pre-us b pact)

Strengthening Weakiening Streagiliealug Weakening
IS0 (21.53) 253 {22 SR khi
EUR $8.34) [:B.F] {054 .34
Gi3pP (HLET 06T [£% EE s
AR 1.7 ¢1.7a) 181 (1 81
iNR 97860 (7.68) 70,05 {F005)
Othiers L10.613 .61 {0337 33




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial stalements (Continned)

(Currency - lidian rupees in crores)

56

(c}

(b)

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continuedi
Financiat risk management (Continried)

Market risk (Continned)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate 15k s the risk that the fair value ot fure cash flows of a financisl instrument will flucieste beeause of changes in marked inlerest rales. The
Group's exposure 1o market risk for changes in interest rates relales 10 loans given, deposits and horrowings from {inancial instilutions. In order W
optimize he Group's position with regards to interest jncomne and interest expenses and (o manage the fterest rate risk, freasury performs a
comprelesive corporat nterest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of fived rate and flosting rate Naancil mstedments wils ol
PoFFel k.

e detmis af the Group s shart-term and tongetem loans and bomewings, mehiding uterest e profibes, refor 1o Nate 24 and 26 of these consolidated

Tinancial slatemens,

Particuiars 31 Marel 2025 31 March 2000

Fixed rate instraments

Finewral assels 41184 4341
Finsancial haldiies {1,586.48) 19424y
11,176,78} (1,507 08)

Variabie rate instysments

Fusnseial assers

Fineaat Habibines {I87.31}4 [ERE R3]

(IRT.31} 414 §6)

Inlerest rate sensitivily - Axed rate instrements
The Group's fixed rate borrowings and fxed rate bank depasits sre carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subjecs 1o interest rawe nisk ag defined
in Ind AS 107, since neither the carmying amont nor the future cash flow will flectvate beesuse of o change in market iferest rates.

Interesi rate sensitivity - variable rate instrumenis

rofit or (Joss) - Defyre 1as

ENR HW bp inerense 100 b deereasy
37 March 2021

NarighleFa1e mstruments 1.87 (1LE7Y

Cash Mluw sensilivity (ne1) 1.87 {587}

Prafit or (oss) - Befure taa

INR IO by increase 1) by decresse]
31 Marell 2620
Variable-rate msluments 415 (4,153

Casll Now sensitivity (uet} {15 (4.1 5Y




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financiat statements (Continued}

Jor the vear ended 31 March 2021

{Crrencey | Indian rupees in crores)

56  Financial instraments ~ Fair valoes and risk management (Continucd)
{ry  Capital Magagement

FThe Growp’s policy 15 10 mamtam & sliong capital base 50 as 10 maintan investor, creditor and market confidence and o sustaim 1wture development of
the business. The management moniors the relm on capital as well as the levet of dividends o ordinary sharcholders.

The Group monitors capifal using a ratio of “adjusted net debt’ 1o “adjusted equity”. For this purpose, adjusted net debu is defined 1otal debt dess cash and
bark badonces.

The Group's adjusted ne debt 1o equoty ratio 15 s follows:

BPuriivofurs E1 Blnrch 2023 3T Mareh 2020
Boecrren! B 1447 EARE
Sient-lorm bor o [INFE RN FE30Y
Current maturities ot long-terns debn 24,71 oh A
Ceross delst T69.5Y 2345703
Lss . Caslland cash equavalents B0 R G0
Adjusted net debt 1,G83.480 1206
Total eqoity anribucsile 1o awners af the Campany 548,14 23750

Adjusted nel debt 10 adiusted oquity ratio 307 178




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes o the consolidated linancial statements {Confinued)

a8 ot 31 Mearch 20021

(Cumrency : liun sapees 10 crores)
57 Salc of investmeni in subsidiarires

On 19 August 2009, but effective 1 April 20t9, Toreign subsidiary sold 57% of ws shares i SWIR Power Lunited. Qut ol 31%, 10% was

seld 10 porent company, This investinenl is recorded as ofwr mvestnents (Refer note?)

Further an 4 June 20192, Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Solutions Limted was voluntarily liguidaied.

The details ol consideration received, issets and Bubilities aver which control was tost and gain on disposals (recorded i statement of

profid and loss 11 as follows:

As al ¥ Aprit 2009

Ag at 4 June 2019

SWI Power Limited

Sterling snd Wilsan
Co-Gen Selutions

Consideration received

Fair value of consideralion reeeived *

* Walue below ENE 5.0

Net assets disposed off
Non-cureent assets
Capilat work-in-progress
Peferred Lax assel
Goodwili

Cuarrent assety

Trade and ather receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Taolal assets (1)

Curreat liabilities
Trade and olher payables
Total tiabilities (b)

Net assetsf (iabilities) isposed off {a-b}
Reclassification of Toreign currency transfation reserve®
Share of ned abilitics by non-contradling inierest

Gain f (Losg) en disposal {A - B+ O+ 1D}

Net cash outflow an disposat

Cash proceed fram disposal

Less: cash and ¢ash cquivalests in subsidiary disposed of

Net cash flow an dispasal

Limited
{14t 0,17
276 -
(.76 -
4.71 415
495 {112
12.13 .20
12529 .38
120.66 .52
129.66 0,12
4,37 0.26
H.96 -
244 -
2.2%9 .08,
600 417
12,43 0.20
-12.13 -0.02

* Gain on dispasal has been conpured afier adfusting FCTR reclassified ro starement of profit and loss




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 34 March 2021

{Currency © Indian ropees in crores}

SH

Business Combination

Acquisition of subsidiaries in the previous year

Country of
vegistration and
principal place of

Proportien of
ownership interest
Beld by the Group

Name of subsidiary

Business
SWH Se. Helens Tad, Fagiand and Wales 31%
SWB Skelmersdale Lad, England aud Wales 1%

Acquisition of SWB 8. Helens, Lid
In the previous yvear, Foreign subsidiary (SWB Power Limitmed) acquired 100% ownership interest in SWB St Helens Lid.,
England and Wales upon its incorporation for 2 1otal consideration of GBP 100G {equivalent 1o Rs. INR (101 crore).

Acquisition of SW8 Skelmersdale 1.4d,

In the previous year, SWIB Power Limited acquired TO0% ownership imterest in SWB Skelmersdale Lid, England and Wales fram
a third party. Acguisition of the subsidiary was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting, The Group id not
perform a purchase price allocation exercise as of the dale of acquisition, applying the exemption under the standards which
eives the Group 12 months from the acquisition dale 1o conplele the exercise and record the resulting adjusiments. However,
during the vear, effective 1 Aprif 2019, but before (he completion of the purchase price aliocation exercise, the subsidiary way
sold at its carrying value.

Capital work in progress -4 32
Accounis and other receivables 085
Accounts and alber payables 5.33
Share of nel assets-al carrving value (as at dale of acquisitian) 316
Less: Parchase constderation paid in cash 4.34
Provisional goodwill as a¢ 31 March 2019 471
Sale of subsidiary (Nowe 553 -4.71
Goodwili as at 31 March 2020 -




Sterling and Wilson Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
ax at 31 Maveh 2027

(Cursency : ladian ropees in crores)

59 Common Control

The Board of directors of Swerbing and Wilson Co-Gen Soluttons Private Limited in its mecting held on 3 Avgust 2020 approved
ransier of 100% equity shares of face value of Rs 10 each o Sterling and Wilson Private Limited {"the Parent Conpany™) for a
consideration of [NR Rs 5 crores. On 10 Angust 2020, the sranster has come isto elfect. The Sterling and Wilson Co-Gen Solutions
Private Limited and its subsidiaries and its associate specialises in wrkey solwtions, part implementation of power plant projects and
other engine and peneration projects bath gas diesel, gas wrhines and steany wrbings of af including planning. desigming, insiallation,
swpervision, commissioning, serviee, repair, operation and meimenance. This trassfer heing rmsaction hetween comman controt
erHitics, the assets acquired and liabilitics assomed have been recorded st istoricat cost i e Dnaneial stataments retrospectively.
Flenee financiat statements of Sierfing sud Wilsen Co-Cen Sohutions Privale Linnted and s subsidiarics and s associaie ane nwrpod
with effeet from April 1 2039 Accordingly Tipures fir the year ended March 31 2020 reinstated are afior piving effect to the above

transaction. The excess of considerition over Share capital amounting To INR Wi, is reflected a5 an adjustment 1o Capital Reserve

priorio t April 2039,
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60 Transfer Pricing
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The Group's international transactions with refited purtios are at an's length as per the independent accountants report for the year ended 31 March 2020
Managemenl believes that the Group's iternational Urassactions with related partics post 31 March 2020 continue lo be af ar'’s Iengab and that the transfer
pricing legislation will nel have auy impact an these consolidated financial sialenents, pasticulatly on amount of lax expense and that o provision lor
Taxalion.

The Group had eniered ino the development, supply, eivil warks, service and operstion and maintenance agreements (heseinafter refesred (o as “the EPC
contracts™), far developing, constructing and commissioning of seven solar plants for seven Projects in bwo states namely Telangana and Madhya Pradesh
which were under dispte with the Developers {soven Speciad Purpose Vebicle (8PV) Companies owned by Sky Power Group.} Ot of the seven prajeets,
puesiant o nepotitions/discussion, disputes for four projects have bren sesolved and setled priorsa Mareh 2021, As on the halance sheet date the vahue of
e recenvabies. unbilled receivables and advance refated 1o the batance three projects agarepntes 113, 848,93 erores fprevious vear Ry 38378 crones)
Thasged on the pattenn of Qe seltlements. ferest receivabde wmousting te Rs 133 22 crores avered in carlier vears biss been foregane and chasged off te
Profit andd Less accousd daring, yea by the Group.

The Holding Company's subsidiary, Sterling and Wilson International FAID which had supplicd mported maternads for these projects had filed ease belare
TanBle High Court of Dedbi in Decembor 2038 for two sut ol theee projects. restraining Skypower Group to alienating, transforring andfor selling the said
assets, pending cammencement of arbitzation proceedings with the Seal of Arbitration in Singapore. The Delhi High Court has, vide its order dated June
22, 2020 interslia divected each respondents of Skypower Group Companies/SPV in she Delli High Court proceedings to, withind (Four) weeks from the
datc of Delhi High Court Order, fumish bank guarantee equivalent 1o 30% of the (olal ameuns sought 10 be secured by Group willy the Registrar General of
the High Courl, The Developers sought various extenstons for furnishing the bank guaraniees, the last extension being sought on 22 May 2021 for a period
of 12 weeks which was gramted by the High Court.

In case of the renmainimg one project the dispute is between the Developers and Madhya Pradesh Power Management Company Limited (MPPMCL), The
subject matter of dispute is the vadidity of the Power Parchase Agreement (PPAY which was enered imto between the Developer and MPPFMCL and which
MPPMOE. Bad terminated citing delay in commisioning of project. The High Court has twice given verdict in favour of the Develaper, however MPPMCL
has preferred an appent against fhe High Court decision and the matter curremtly is pending before the Supreme Court (or disposal. Subsequent (o Supremc
Court decision the Group expects settiement/tecovery of its dues.

Based on discussions with the Developers, Legal opinion sought and favourable order passed by Detin High Court, the Groap Manugement believes that
outstanding amoont is good and recoverable and that no adjustimentsfimpairments are required 1o be made io the consolidated Ind AS lMnansial statcments
of e Group twards such (otal mnsianding recoverables as on the balance sheet date.

Subseguent Dvent:

#) Pursuant Lo an agreement signed with a step down subsidiary, Sterling and Witson Middle LEast Etectramechanical L1LC ("SWMELEC™) on 1 April 2024,
Sterling and Wiksan International FZE, has tansferned assets, labilities and sccumulated losses as of 1 April 202§ amounting 10 AFD) 269712176 (Rs.
538.21 crores), AED 793,942,230 (Rs, 1,584 37 crores) aud AFD 344 870,011 (Rs. 1,087 .29 crores) tespectively to SWMELLC, The aforesaid agreoment
was raliffed by resolutions passed by the Board of (he respective companics. Pursuamt 1o 2 business transfer cum acquisition agreement entered into
between Oman Shapoorji Company LLC {"05C0"), a related parly and SWMELLC on § April 2021, SWMELLC trznsfened ifs mechanicat, clecttical and
phimbing (MEP) business ajong witly assets, labilities and acomvulated losses as of 1 Aprl 2021 (relaung w MEP businessy amounting 1o ALD
29R.539.932 (s, 59574 crores), AED 868,219,492 (Rs. 1,732.54 crares) and ALD 569.672,500 (Rs. 1,136.8¢ crovesy respeciively 1o OSCO. The
aforesaid agreement was ratilied by resolutions passed by the Rourd of the respective companies.

by The Holding Company, Sterfing & Wilson Private Limited (SWPL), owns, aperates and maintains reaf-1op solar power projects, and undestakes sale of
2 pany £ F ¥ ¥

power (rom such roof-top solar pawer projects 1o various offtakers. The Company has a division, Rooftop Independent Power Producers Dwviasion

{' Raoflgp IPP Divisian'} which is in the business of developing roofiop salar plants of tess than 1 MW across India,

SWPL is desirous of selling the Rooftop IPP Divisian of the Company on a slump sale basis Tor a lump sum consideration without values being assigned 10
individual assets and habilities. For this purpose the cempany has entered in 1o a Business Transfer Agreement with Wedeesday Solar Privaie Limited on
April 10, 202t and the roai-top prajects have been bifurcated in to 3 separate project clusters/businesy undertakings.

SWPL is wuiting for 2 no-objeclion certificate from banks {of trunsfer of the Business Undertakings 1hat the Business Assels, the Business Contracts, and
the Projecis are frec frony all Encumbrances. The aforementioned sule of Roaflop PP Division is expected 1o be.completed by December 2521
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63 The cutbreak af Coranavirus disease (COVID-19) pandemic plobally and in India is causing sipnificant disturbanee and stovwedown of cconomic activity,
The Group's Management has considered the passible effects. i any, that may resull Trom the pandemic velating 10 COVIII - 19 on the carrying amount of
tradie receivables inciuding contraet assets, unbilied revene, other financial assels and inventories. In developing the asswnptions and eslhmaies relaing ta
anecrainties s al e Balance Sheey date in relation Lo ihe recoveralle amount of these assets. the Management has considered the global economic
conditions prevailing as at the date of approval of these financial statements und has used internal and external sources of informatian (o the extent
determined by 1. Based on the current indicatars of Iuture ccenomic conditions, the Manapement expects 10 recover the camying amotnt of these assets.
However, the Managemens will cantinue o closely monitor any material changes w futere coonomie conditions. The acuat ovicome of these assunytions

and esiimanles may vy

& Other matfers

1) Information with regard to other matters specified in Schedude 11 o the Act s either nil or not applicaliic to the Grows for fhe year.

13y Previons year's figures bave been egrouped S rectassilicd where necessany 1o condiine with financiad slalements prepared
under Tnd AS.




